
BARRATT
report & accounts 2005



2

Pre-tax Profits 
£m

01 02 03 04 05

178.4
220.0

288.7

367.7
406.6

Year ended 30 June

Basic Earnings Per Share
pence

01 02 03 04 05

89.1

111.4
123.6

Year ended 30 June

55.1

UK Housing Operating Profit
£m

01 02 03 04 05

223.3

290.5

366.4
395.7

Year ended 30 June

183.8

UK Housing Turnover
£m

01 02 03 04 05

1,660

2,033

2,327
2,472

Year ended 30 June

1,391

UK Land Bank
000’s plots

01 02 03 04 05

40.1

45.3

49.4

54.1

Year ended 30 June

35.1

financial highlights
Consistent growth has been achieved across all key financial performance indicators.

68.6

UK Legal Completions
units

01 02 03 04 05

11,310

14,021
14,351

Year ended 30 June

12,250

13,304



3

Barratt Developments PLC Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 30 June 2005. Registered in England No. 604574.

Chairman’s Statement 4-5

Group Chief Executive’s Review 6-18

Award Winners 19-21

Directors and Professional Advisers 22

Notice of Annual General Meeting 23-24

Directors’ Report 25-33

Remuneration Report 34-41

Group Profit and Loss Account 42

Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses 42

Group Balance Sheet 43

Group Cash Flow Statement 44

Accounting Policies 45

Notes to the Accounts 46-55

Company Balance Sheet 55

Five Year Record and Financial Calendar 56

Auditors’ Report 57

Group Structure and Directory 58-59

contents



4

We are also well positioned for the
future, having ended the financial
year with healthy forward sales of
£774m. With further sales progress
since 1st July 2005, forward sales
now stand at £900m which, together
with completions to date, already
secures 52% of our full year
requirement.  

Key features of the results for the
year ended 30th June 2005 are as
follows:-

• Group pre-tax profit amounted to
£406.6m against £367.7m the
previous year, an increase of 11%.

• UK pre-tax profit, before the
exceptional item of £15.9m from
the disposal of ground rents, was
£390.7m compared to £358.3m
the previous year, up 9%.

• Basic earnings per share
amounted to 123.6p against
111.4p the previous year, an
increase of 11%.

• A final dividend of 17.99p per
share will be recommended,

payable on 18 November 2005 to
shareholders on the register on 21
October 2005, against 14.68p the
previous year.  This gives a total
dividend for the year of 26.98p,
an increase of 25%, 4.6 times
covered.  This increase reflects our
progress and the Board’s
confidence in the future
performance of the Group.

• Net cash in hand at the year end
was £276.9m (2004: £189.7m
cash in hand) with an average
gearing over the year of just 2%.
This was achieved notwithstanding
a £234.0m increased investment
in land stocks and work in
progress.

• On 30 August 2004 we completed
the disposal of our small Southern
California operation, for net
proceeds of £85m, in line with the
Group’s strategy to focus on our
UK operations.  

• Return on average capital
employed continued to be
amongst the highest in the industry
at 31% (2004: 37%). 

Charles Toner, Group Chairman,
Barratt Developments PLC.

chairman’s statement

I am very pleased to report that, notwithstanding the challenging market conditions
throughout the year, the Group achieved further growth in volume and margins
producing a record £406.6m pre-tax profit. This was our 13th consecutive year of
organic growth and we continue to build more homes in total and more homes on
brownfield sites than any other housebuilder in Britain.  

‘...the Group
achieved

further growth
in volume 

and margins
producing 

a record
£406.6m 

pre-tax 
profit.’
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These robust results demonstrate the
continued success of our organic
growth strategy and the fundamental
strengths of our Group.

The medium and long term
fundamentals of the housing market
remain sound, bolstered by a
continuing serious shortage of new
homes due to the very slow planning
system.  The economic outlook in the
short term, however, remains
uncertain notwithstanding the recent
0.25% cut in interest rates.  With
over nine months of our financial
year yet to run it is, therefore, too
early to accurately assess the market
for the year ahead, although we are
well placed to achieve further growth
in completions if market conditions
allow.

Our experienced management team
across Britain has, once again,
demonstrated its ability to succeed in
a very competitive market place. 
I would like to thank all of our local

teams throughout the Group, both
office and site based, for all their
hard work.  Our record performance
is a result of their teamwork, skills
and enthusiasm.   

We are pleased to welcome a new
Non-Executive Director, Mr Bill
Shannon, who joined the Board in
September. Mr Shannon has had a
long and distinguished career with
Whitbread PLC, serving as an
Executive Director between 1994
and 2004.  He is also a Non-
Executive Director of Aegon UK PLC
and Matalan PLC and brings with
him a wealth of experience in the
business sector.

Looking ahead, we are well placed
to continue to progress. Despite the
short term economic uncertainties,
our long term strategy remains
unchanged and undoubtedly there
will be many growth opportunities
going forward.   Our wide
geographic spread and extensive

product range, together with our
urban regeneration and social
housing expertise, all contributed to
a good result for the year.  These
core strengths, together with our
healthy forward sales, strong
finances and experienced
management team, leave us well
positioned for the future and able to
quickly respond as market conditions
improve.  

Charles Toner,
Group Chairman 28 September 2005

Chatsworth Park, Banstead, Surrey. A development of 24 apartments,
carefully designed to cover the “footprint” of a retirement home
which previously occupied the site. 
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We built more new homes in total
and more homes on regenerated
brownfield land than any other
housebuilder for the third consecutive
year.   We also strengthened our
leading position in the provision of
social housing.   No housebuilder
does more to create sustainable
communities than Barratt.  

In addition, during the year, we had
the pleasure of handing over the
keys to the 300,000th Barratt home
completed since our Group was
formed in 1958 by Sir Lawrie Barratt.

At the same time as growing our
business, our work has been
recognised this year by a record
number of design, quality and
environmental awards. 

Our teams across the
country successfully
adapted to a more
demanding and
competitive market place,
achieving yet another
record result for the
Barratt Group - our 
13th consecutive year 
of organic growth.

group chief executive’s review
David Pretty, Group Chief Executive,
Barratt Developments PLC with the
2005 Major Housebuilder of the Year
Award, presented by the influential
Building magazine. 

‘...yet another 
record result 

for the Barratt
Group - our 

13th consecutive
year of organic

growth.’



UK HOUSING

A total of 14,351 new homes were
completed, an increase of 2%,
helping increase UK housebuild
turnover by 6% to a new record of
£2,472.4m (2004: £2,327.6m).  A
further improvement in our margin,
combined with the £15.9m
exceptional profit from the sale of
our freehold ground rent portfolio
and low gearing, produced a record
Group pre-tax profit of £406.6m, an
increase of 11%.  The underlying
operating profit from our core UK 

housing activity increased to
£395.7m, up 8%, with the operating
margin increasing again from 15.7%
to 16.0%.  

Our average selling price increased
by 4% to £172,200.  Total private
completions were 1% down, at
12,591 units, with an increased
selling price of £182,100, up 5%.
Social housing completions
increased by 35% to 1,760, at an
average selling price of £101,700,
up 14%.

We continue to benefit from the
strength of our long-standing
national purchase agreements with
our main suppliers.  These helped us
maintain our stringent control of
costs.  We are also taking positive
action to reduce costs further in
every part of our business.

.

Oyster Wharf, Battersea, London SW11. This award-winning
development is creating 150 apartments, including affordable
housing, live-work units and commercial and leisure space.
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HOUSING MARKET

The housing market throughout our
financial year was certainly one of
the most challenging for years, but
one which we had anticipated and
prepared for.  As a result, and
despite the weaker general economic
situation and buyer hesitancy, we
were able to compete well in all of
our operational areas.  Forward
sales at the year end stood at a
healthy £774m.  Whilst down on last
year’s all time record, which
reflected the previous year’s over-
heated market, in percentage terms
this remains at the upper end of our
historic norm.  This has now
increased to £900m which together
with completions to date, secures
52% of our full year requirement,
with 9 months of the financial year
yet to come.

The fundamentals of the housing
market remain sound, supported by
low interest rates and good
employment levels.  These are
underpinned by restricted supply
caused by constant planning delays,
and the enormous need for new
housing which will have to be met in
due course.

Quite apart from these factors, our
Group greatly benefits from a
number of core strengths which
continue to boost our performance
and provide valuable protection from
market fluctuations.

1 Scholar’s Walk, Kingsbridge, Devon. On a
former school site, this development
provided a wide mix of 2, 3 and 4 bedroom
homes to meet local housing needs.

2 Freemens Meadow, Leicester. This project
is creating a vibrant new community of up
to 1,000 homes, plus shops, restaurants,
and offices on a 37-acre derelict waterfront
site.

3 Inset: Harold Walker, Deputy Group Chief
Executive, and the local MP for Leicester
West Patricia Hewitt, then Trade and
Industry Secretary, at the official opening of
Freemens Meadow.

4 Albany Gardens, Colchester. An award-
winning development which forms part of
the Colne Harbour regeneration project. It
is one of five schemes we currently have in
and around the town.

1

2

3
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Our wide geographic spread and
product range are just two of our
core strengths.  These ensure we
avoid an over-dependence on any
one geographic area or market
sector and enable us to adjust
production, sales and land buying in
line with market conditions.  Today,
we have 450 sites in production
being built by our 34 operating
divisions working throughout
England, Scotland and Wales.  We
are able to serve all sectors of the
market at prices currently from
£72,000 to £2m.  Together with our
affordable average selling price of
£172,200 this maximises our appeal
to the widest range of buyers.

We have identified areas where we
consider both coverage and market
share can be increased.
Accordingly, we have established an
East Anglia division and land has
already been acquired for this new
operation.  The first homes are
targeted for completion this financial

year and we would expect this new
division to produce circa 400 homes
per annum by 2010.

We have always had a strong
presence in the area known as the
Thames Gateway and have currently
3 operating divisions covering that
area.  However, due to the increased
complexity of urban regeneration,
and the need for more focus, we
have formed a new Thames
Gateway operation to act as a
specialist facilitator for our local
divisions. Already, two large sites,
totalling circa 600 homes have been
agreed with English Partnerships
under the London Wide Initiative.
Construction is due to commence
during 2006, with completions
following from 2008 onwards.

At the same time, we have taken the
opportunity to redeploy our
resources to ensure greater coverage
of expansion areas in Kent. Our
former South London division has

been relocated to Sevenoaks and
renamed Barratt Kent. Its previous
operating area has been
redistributed between our two major
West and East London divisions, both
of which have excellent track records
in all aspects of urban renewal.
These changes will improve both our
specialist urban regeneration
opportunities in the capital and our
Group coverage for all types of
housing.

Other areas of the country have
been identified where we can, at the
appropriate time, increase coverage
and market share.  These will be
actioned when the time is right.

GEOGRAPHIC AND PRODUCT DIVERSITY

4
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Our social housing partnerships
continue to prosper.   We have
reinforced our leadership in the
provision of affordable housing, be it
low cost homes for sale, rent, shared
ownership or for those with special
needs.  In the year just ended we
significantly increased output,
building 1,760 homes for our
housing association partners, an
increase of 35%.  Our production in
this key sector has increased 116%
over the past 4 years and we are
now the largest provider of social
housing from the private sector.

Currently, we have 91 partnerships
underway across Britain, with a
further 87 due to start.  As with
urban regeneration, the provision of
much needed affordable social
housing is receiving much greater
Government priority.   This key sector
is likely to grow further and, with our
long experience in this field and
local network, we are well placed to
contribute.

We lead the industry in the
regeneration of Britain’s cities and
urban areas with a track record
based on 30 years of experience.
82% of our homes in the year were
built on brownfield sites, which
equates to over 11,700 homes,
rising to over 95% in London.  This
significantly exceeds the
Government’s 60% target and, once
again, is more than any other
housebuilder.  

Whilst much of our urban
regeneration has been undertaken in
the South, our brownfield activities in
other towns and cities across the rest
of the country continue to expand
and prosper.  Apart from London
and the South East, we are currently
active in many towns and cities,
including Edinburgh, Glasgow,
Newcastle, Leeds, Birmingham,

Leicester, Cardiff, Bristol, Brighton
and Southampton.

In addition, important new projects
totalling over 4,000 homes have
recently won planning approval and
are underway or soon to start.
These include Aberdeen, Edinburgh,
Stockton-on-Tees, Hull, Liverpool,
Rochdale, Wolverhampton, Bedford,
Torquay, Southampton and in
London.  Many other brownfield
projects, large and small, are in the
planning pipeline and others are at
an advanced stage of negotiation.
All of these will help boost our future
production. 

Furthermore, we have been chosen
by the London Borough of Barnet,
together with our partner
Metropolitan Housing Trust, as
preferred developer for the major

West Hendon Regeneration Scheme.
This should produce over 2,000 new
homes, again over the next 10 years.  

We have also been selected, again
as preferred developer, for the
regeneration of East Central
Rochdale.  Together with our partner
Artisan, we will be commencing the
first phase of 80 new homes in 2006
with a potential of 1,500 new homes
over the next 10 years.

Brownfield development has massive
potential and we continue to commit
substantial resources to this growing
sector.   With our unrivalled track
record we remain very well placed to
contribute to, and benefit from, the
Government’s ongoing emphasis on
urban regeneration.

1 Steven Boyes, Chairman of Barratt
Northern (left) with Keith Hill, then
Housing Minister, at Thornaby, Teesside,
where we are a partner in a £100m
brownfield regeneration scheme to provide
800 homes.

2 Kingston Quay, Glasgow. This stylish
development of 372 apartments is on a
former office site in a prime location at
the heart of the city’s riverside
regeneration.

3 The Grange, Harrow. This 138-home
project on a former hospital site involved
both new-build townhouses and the
careful refurbishment of Edwardian Grade
II listed buildings into apartments. 

URBAN REGENERATION AND BROWNFIELD DEVELOPMENT

SOCIAL HOUSING PARTNERSHIPS

1
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1 The Chambers, Friern Barnet, London N11.
The restoration of this listed former town hall
created 49 homes and also involved the
conversion of an old fire station.

2 Balkerne Heights, Colchester. A mix of
distinctive new homes on a former hospital
site close to the town centre, which features
traditional Essex architecture and materials.

3 Capital West, Brentford, Middlesex. This
mixed-use development transformed a former
gasworks on a Thames-side site and recently
won a Greenleaf environmental award.

4 Clive Fenton, Chairman of Barratt Southern
(centre) at Circle Court, London NW9 with,
left to right, Darrell Mercer and Susan Price
of Dominion Housing Group, councillor Reg
Colwill and London Borough of Brent's Martin
Cheeseman.

1

2

3



LAND AND PLANNING

Our land acquisition and planning
skills continue to serve us well in a
difficult planning environment.  We
remained prudent in the land market
throughout the year, but were able to
acquire 19,059 plots which was
4,708 plots, 33%, more than we
used.  These extra plots increased
the land bank to 54,063 plots and,
including 7,000 further plots agreed,
this brings our total UK land bank to
over 61,000, the highest ever.  This
is 4.25 years’ supply at current
volumes.

During the year we spent £745m on
land acquisition, an increase of 

£94m over the year.  This increase
largely represents the redeployment
of the £85m proceeds from the USA
disposal.

Notwithstanding the serious planning
delays bedevilling the industry, we
secured an increased level of
planning approvals for 16,400 plots.
This is 6% more than the previous
year. As a result, we have all the
necessary approvals in place to
achieve our requirements for this
year.  Furthermore, over 90% of the
land required for 2006/07 is already
owned or contracted, with over 70%
for the following year, 2007/08.  

On the back of our planning
progress, we would expect our
average outlets to continue their
steady increase, which will help
mitigate the effects of a more
moderate market.  Subject to
planning approvals being obtained
on programme, we would expect
outlets to increase over the new
financial year to an average of 
circa 465, up from an average of
435 last year.

ADVANCE HOUSING

Our joint venture operation,
Advance Housing, increased
production of steel framed modular
housing from its automated
production facility in Daventry,
Northamptonshire.

It is now in its second year of
production, increasing output from
81 homes to 151 homes.  Of these
128 homes were occupied by private
purchasers on 9 Group
developments and a further 23 

homes were supplied to our housing
association clients on 2
developments.

The concept is beginning to realise
its potential reflecting, as it does, the
Government’s continuing emphasis
on modern methods of construction.
We aim to increase output again this
year, subject to achieving the
necessary planning approvals.

13
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SKILLS TRAINING

Once again we have significantly
increased our investment in skills
training with over 50% of our
construction employees already
achieving the CSCS (Construction
Skills Certification Scheme) standard
in the past year.  This excellent
progress puts us ahead of industry
targets to have a fully carded and
qualified workforce, including our
subcontractors, by 2010.  

We have built up our apprentice
training programme, to be the
largest in the industry, making a real
contribution to addressing the
national construction skills shortage.
Currently, 536 apprentices are
receiving on-site skills training on our
developments nationwide.  In
addition, we have 59 graduates on
fast-track career paths.  An
increasing number of our
managerial and supervisory staff,
both on-site and office based, began
their careers on our apprentice and
graduate programmes.  This augurs
well for our future prospects.   

We have further developed our
Corporate Responsibility Strategy
over the last 12 months across all
areas of the business, including
governance and risk, environmental
management, human resources,
health and safety, community issues
and supply chain management.  

Corporate Responsibility is
increasingly becoming integrated
into our decision making process on
issues such as resourcing, bidding
for Government contracts, land
purchase and remediation.  This
year, Insight Investments and WWF
undertook their second sustainability
survey of major housebuilders in the
UK and our performance rating
improved dramatically from 31% to
69%.  Another major success has
been the achievement of the
international standard ISO 14001
for Environmental Management in six
Group Divisions.  This standard will
be implemented in a further 8
Divisions in the coming year.  The
feedback on this project has been 

very positive and will assist us in
controlling risks and delivering
continual environmental
improvement on our development
sites.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The continued focus of senior
management on health and safety,
and the ongoing development of our
risk-based Occupational Health and
Safety Management System (OHSMS)
has transformed the standards and
performance achieved across our
operating divisions.  

For the third year running the
independent health and safety audit
inspections on our development sites,
undertaken every three weeks by the
NHBC, confirmed that our
performance rating remains ahead of
the national housebuilder average.
We are pleased to report that this 

year we have had no legal breaches
of health and safety legislation and
no statutory notices have been served
by the HSE in relation to our
development activities.  We are not
complacent, however, and our
dedicated health and safety team are
continuing to monitor health and
safety performance across the
business to identify scope for further
improvement. 

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

14

Laurence Dent, Corporate Director, with
Marion MacDonald, Assistant Company
Secretary at Melbury, Newcastle Great Park.

1
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1 Our second Corporate Responsibility
Report, to be published shortly.

2 The Haven, Purfleet, Essex. These steel-
framed modular homes are built with 
pre-finished “pods” manufactured at our
Daventry production facility.

3 Graduates Ifty Yasin (left) and Anthony
Philips joined our Graduate Trainee
Scheme, designed to encourage high
achievers into the Barratt Group.

4 Rozel House, Weston-super-Mare. We
regenerated a former hotel site to create
this contemporary waterfront development.

2

3

4



1 We recently celebrated the
completion of our
300,000th home, bought
by first-time buyers
Damian Corneal and his
wife Christine Lee Wing.  

2 West End Mews,
Kirkbymoorside, North
Yorkshire. This rural
brownfield development
provided 31 homes and
won recognition for its
positive design features. 

3 East Central, London E8. A
16-storey tower crowns this
development of 159
apartments in the heart of
Hackney. 

4 Geoff Hester, Chairman of
Barratt West (back row,
centre), with 15 of our 51
award-winning site
managers in the NHBC
“Pride In The Job”
campaign for quality
workmanship.

1 2

3
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CUSTOMER CARE

Improving customer care is very
important to us.  Good progress has
been made over the last three years
in comprehensively overhauling our
quality and customer services
procedures and our independently
audited buyer survey responses show
continuing improvement.  We remain
focused on targeting further, and
lasting, improvement in all parts of
our operation. 

Last month we launched our new 10
point Customer Charter setting out
unequivocally the standards of
quality and service we strive to 

provide to our customers.  We are
also developing a Customer Care
Personal Code of Practice for all our
staff, suppliers and sub-contractors,
pledging our commitment to the
core values of integrity, respect and
courtesy upon which the delivery of
quality and service depend.  A
comprehensive staff training
programme for the new Charter is
underway and a similar programme
will be put in place for the Code of
Practice. 

Like all in the sector, we are highly
dependent on our sub-contractors 

and suppliers aspiring to and
achieving similar standards of
quality, service and customer care to
ourselves.  A major area of focus in
our sub-contractor and supplier
partnerships in the year ahead will
be to ensure that all who work for,
and supply to, the Barratt Group are
aware of our increased expectations
and are fully committed to
compliance with our new Customer
Charter and Code of Practice.

AWARDS

Our construction teams produced an
excellent performance in this year’s
NHBC “Pride in the Job” campaign,
securing 51 Quality Awards, up from
40 last year, and a new record.  This
secured 19% of the total nationwide
NHBC awards compared to our
market share of 9%.  

The Group also did well in the Daily
Express British Housebuilder Awards.
KingsOak secured the Best National
Builder Award 2005 and a further 6
top awards went to Barratt and
KingsOak Divisions.

It is very pleasing to report that for a
record fourth time we were voted
‘Major Housebuilder of the Year’ in
the 2005 ‘Building’ awards, one of
the most prestigious awards in the
construction industry.  The award
recognises the Group’s leading role
and outstanding contribution to
housing and urban renewal.  

We were also recognised by the
Design Council as one of “an elite”
group of quoted British companies,
which use good design as a
management discipline and tool at
the strategic heart of our business.  

Our leading contribution to design
innovation in housebuilding was also
recognised in the 2005 House
Builders’ Federation’s publication
‘Designing Homes for Life’.  No less
than 9 of our developments were
showcased for their positive design
features, more than any other
national housebuilder.

In addition, the Group won 13
Greenleaf environmental awards
which was, for the fourth year
running, the most in the industry. 

4



LOOKING FORWARD

We have produced another set of
record results, and achieved our
13th consecutive year of progress, in
a challenging and competitive
market place.

The short-term economic outlook
remains unclear and with only three
months of our financial year elapsed,
it is too early to assess the market for
the rest of the year.  We shall be
operating on the assumption that the
market will remain challenging but
are targeting to maintain volumes.
We have the benefits of a healthy
forward order book, increasing
outlets, a growing social housing
programme and our proven
marketing ability to achieve sales in 

tougher times.  However, should the
market improve, we also have the
land bank with planning permission
and the capacity to immediately
respond and increase volumes.  

Notwithstanding the short-term
economic outlook, the underlying
fundamentals of the housing market
are sound and there will be many
growth opportunities for us in the
future.  Our long-term growth
strategy therefore remains
unchanged.  Our national
geographic spread and wide product
range, together with our urban
regeneration and social housing
skills, have all contributed to a good
result this year and will boost our 

performance in the future.  These
core strengths, together with our
healthy forward sales, quality land
bank, strong finances and
experienced management team,
leave us well positioned for the
future and poised for further growth
once market conditions allow.

David Pretty
Group Chief Executive 28th September 2005

1 The Coppice, Reigate, Surrey. These
traditionally-styled new homes reflect the
design of local properties, but utilise
modern materials and construction
techniques.  

2 Reflexion, Hounslow. We are providing
almost 1,000 new homes in two West
London town centre regeneration schemes
at Feltham and Hounslow. This scheme is
creating 342 homes, plus shops, offices,
leisure amenities and medical centre.

2

1
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Blake’s Quay, Reading.
We are the town’s most
active housebuilder,
with a series of highly-
successful projects. This
award-winning
brownfield development
includes 86 apartments.  

award winners



In the 2005 Building Awards we 
were voted Major Housebuilder of
the Year, for a record fourth time.
The awards recognise outstanding
performance, achievement and
innovation and are judged by a
panel of experts. They are organised
by leading magazine Building, which
sets out to identify best practice
across the industry.

In this year’s NHBC “Pride In The
Job” campaign our Site Managers
won a record total of 51 Quality
Awards for construction excellence.

Customer service is at the heart of
our operations and the Group won
seven top awards in the British
Housebuilder of the Year awards –
including Best National Builder –
following a major survey of new
home buyers across the country.

The Group also won 13 Greenleaf
environmental awards, more than
any other housebuilder for the fourth
year running.

20

RECORD AWARD WINNERS

AWARDS 

TOP REGIONAL AWARD WINNERS

CUSTOMER SERVICE GOLD AWARD

AWARD-WINNING HOUSEBUILDER

award winners

NATIONAL WINNER

2 3

1

1 Paul Gieron, Chairman of KingsOak
Central (right) and Archie Wilson,
Chairman of KingsOak Southern, at the
2005 British Housebuilder of the Year
Awards, where the Group won the Best
National Builder title.

2 Colin Dearlove (centre), Group Finance
Director, with award-winning Site Manager
Tony Austin and Sales Negotiator Colette
Armstrong at Melbury, Newcastle Great
Park. 

3 Robert Handford, Chairman of Barratt
Central (left) with Roy Hammans, the
region’s Site Manager of the Year.

4 Tate Gardens, London SW16. Winner of a
Greenleaf environmental award. 

5 Priory Place, Coventry. This highly-
successful development close to the city’s
cathedral won recognition for its positive
design features. 

6 Manadon Park, Plymouth. This
development was recognised for its
landscaping design in the Your New Home
awards.

7 Oaklands Manor, Chelmsford, Essex. This
superb development took Gold in the New
Homes Garden Awards.



5

7

6

4
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Directors
C G Toner *§∫ D A Pretty § H Walker 
Chairman Chief Executive Deputy Chief Executive

P H Ashworth *§ S J Boyes R J Davies *†§∫ C A Dearlove C Fenton

P R Gieron G K Hester A E Kilburn *†§∫ M Pescod *†§∫ W Shannon*

Mr C G Toner, 63, was appointed a non-executive director in May 2002.  He was previously the Deputy Group Chief Executive of Abbey
National plc and is currently a non-executive director of Ford Credit Europe (FCE) Bank Plc.  He was appointed Group Vice-Chairman
in June 2002 and Group Chairman in October 2002.

Mr D A Pretty, 60, initially joined the Group in 1976 and was formerly the managing director of Barratt Central London.  He left the
Group in 1987 to take up a position as managing director of St George PLC.  He rejoined the Group and was appointed to the Main
Board in 1990.  In 1991 he became Chairman of the Barratt Homes Southern Region.  He was appointed Group Managing Director in
March 1998 and Group Chief Executive in October 2002.  He was appointed a director of the Home Builders Federation in January
2005 and is a member of the Code for Sustainable Buildings Senior Steering Group set up by the ODPM in December 2004.

Mr H Walker, 60, joined the Group in 1977 and was managing director of Barratt Manchester from 1988 until his appointment to the
Group Board in July 1996 as Chairman of the Barratt Homes Central Region.  He was appointed Deputy Group Chief Executive in July
2003.

Mr P H Ashworth, 67, was appointed a non-executive director in May 1997.  He is the senior partner in the firm of solicitors, Field
Cunningham & Co. and for the last 40 years has specialised in development site acquisition for both residential development and retail
and leisure development throughout the UK.

Mr S J Boyes, 45, joined the Group in 1978.  Formerly the managing director of Barratt York, he was appointed to the Group Board in
July 2001 and is Chairman of the Barratt Homes Northern Region.

Mr R J Davies, 57, was appointed a non-executive director in May 2004.  He is the Chief Executive of Arriva plc, a position he has held
since December 1998.  He previously held the same position at East Midlands Electricity plc, before which he had been Finance Director
of Ferranti International plc and Waterford Wedgwood plc.  He had earlier held various senior positions with the Ford Motor Company in
the UK, USA and Spain.  

Mr C A Dearlove, 54, joined the Group finance department in 1981.  He was appointed to the Group Board as Group Finance Director
in December 1992.

Mr C Fenton, 47, initially joined the Group in 1983 becoming managing director of Barratt West London in 1996.  He was appointed
to the Group Board in July 2003 and is Chairman of the Barratt Homes Southern Region.

Mr P R Gieron, 51, joined the Group in 1980.  Formerly the managing director of Barratt Bristol, he was appointed to the Group Board
in July 1997 and is Chairman of the KingsOak Homes Region.

Mr G K Hester, 60, joined the Group in 1996 having formerly held positions as the Chief Executive of Westbury Homes Limited and as
a director of the Britannia Group.  He was appointed managing director of Barratt Bristol in 1996 and to the Group Board in November
1999.  He is the Chairman of the Barratt Homes West Region.

Mr A E Kilburn OBE, 69, non-executive director, was appointed to the Board in April 1998.  He has worked in housing for more than
40 years and has held senior positions in both local authority and housing association sectors.  Formerly the Chief Executive of Home
Housing Association from 1976 until his retirement in April 1998, he is currently involved in a number of charitable enterprises
including the North of England Civic Trust and the William Sutton Group, of which he is Chairman.

Mr M Pescod, 59, was appointed a non-executive director in October 2001.  He is a founding partner of the investment bank Tricorn
Partners LLP.  He was previously a partner in Slaughter and May.

Mr W Shannon, 55, was appointed a non-executive director on 1st September 2005.  He is currently a non-executive director of Aegon
UK PLC and Matalan PLC.  He was previously an executive director of Whitbread PLC from 1994 to 2004.

Secretary
Mr L Dent

Life President
Sir Lawrence Barratt founded the first Barratt company in 1958 and was knighted for his services to the industry in 1982.  He
retired as Non-Executive Chairman in November 1997 assuming the role of Life President.

Registrars
Capita Registrars
The Registry
34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham
Kent
BR3 4TU

Registered Auditors Brokers
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP JPMorgan Cazenove
Newcastle upon Tyne UBS Investment Bank

Solicitors Merchant Bankers 
Slaughter and May UBS Investment Bank

Directors and Professional Advisers

* Non-executive     † Member of the Audit Committee § Member of the Nomination Committee ∫ Member of the Remuneration Committee
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Notice is hereby given that the forty seventh annual general meeting of Barratt Developments PLC (the “Company”) will be held
at the Barber-Surgeons’ Hall, Monkwell Square, Wood Street, London, EC2Y 5BL on 17th November 2005 at 2.30pm for the
following purposes:

1. To receive and adopt the reports of the auditors and directors and the accounts for the year ended 30th June 2005.

2. To declare a final dividend.

To re-elect directors:
3. Mr C G Toner who retires by rotation.

4. Mr D A Pretty who retires by rotation.

5. Mr H Walker who retires by rotation.

6. Mr W Shannon who retires at the first annual general meeting following his appointment by the Board.

7. To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors of the Company to hold office until the conclusion of the next general
meeting at which accounts are laid before the Company and to authorise the directors to fix their remuneration.

8. That the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 30th June 2005 be and is hereby approved.

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions of which resolutions 9, 10, 11 and 12 will be proposed as ordinary
resolutions and resolutions 13, 14 and 15 will be proposed as special resolutions.

9. That:
(a) the Company’s Co-Investment Plan (the Plan), a summary of which is set out in Appendix II to the circular to shareholders

dated 13th October 2005, be and is hereby approved and that the directors be and they are hereby authorised to do all acts
and things necessary to establish and carry it into effect; and

(b) the directors be and they are hereby authorised to vote and be counted in the quorum on any matter connected with the
Plan (except that no director may vote or be counted in a quorum in respect of his own participation) and any prohibition
on voting contained in the Articles of Association of the Company be and is hereby relaxed accordingly.

10. That the proposed amendment to the Company’s Long-Term Performance Plan summarised in the circular to shareholders dated
13th October 2005 be and it is hereby approved and the directors be and they are hereby authorised to do all acts and things
necessary to establish and carry it into effect.

11. That the proposed performance targets for future awards under the Company’s Long-Term Performance Plan summarised in the
circular to shareholders dated 13th October 2005 be and they are hereby approved.

12. That the Board be and it is generally and unconditionally authorised to exercise all powers of the Company to allot relevant
securities (within the meaning of Section 80 of the Companies Act 1985) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £5,798,886
being 24.0% of the nominal value of the existing issued share capital as at 28th September 2005 provided that this authority
shall expire on the date of the next annual general meeting after the passing of this resolution save that the Company may before
such expiry make an offer or agreement which would or might require relevant securities to be allotted after such expiry and the
Board may allot relevant securities in pursuance of such an offer or agreement as if the authority conferred hereby had not
expired.

13. That the Board be and it is hereby empowered, pursuant to Section 95 of the Companies Act 1985, to allot equity securities
(within the meaning of Section 94 of the said Act) for cash pursuant to the authority conferred by resolution 12 (subject to the
passing of resolution 12) and/or where such allotment constitutes an allotment of equity securities by virtue of section 94(3A)
of the said Act, as if sub-section (1) of Section 89 of the said Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided that this power
shall be limited to the allotment of equity securities:
(a) in connection with a rights issue in favour of ordinary shareholders (excluding any person holding ordinary shares as treasury

shares) where the equity securities respectively attributable to the interests of all ordinary shareholders are proportionate (as
nearly as may be) to the respective numbers of ordinary shares held by them provided that the directors may make such
arrangements in respect of overseas holders of shares and in respect of fractional entitlements as they consider necessary
or convenient; and

(b) (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (a) above) up to an aggregate nominal value of £1,210,056 being 5% of the
nominal value of the existing issued share capital as at 28th September 2005,

and shall expire on the date of the next annual general meeting of the Company after the passing of this resolution, save that
the Company may before such expiry make an offer or agreement which would, or might, require equity securities to be allotted
after such expiry and the Board may allot equity securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if the power conferred
hereby had not expired.

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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14. That the Company be and it is hereby generally and unconditionally authorised to make one or more market purchases (within
the meaning of Section 163(3) of the Companies Act 1985) of its ordinary shares of 10p each (“Ordinary Shares”) provided
always that:
(a) this authority is limited to a maximum aggregate number of 24,201,114 Ordinary Shares;
(b) the maximum price which may be paid for an Ordinary Share is an amount equal to 105 per cent of the average of the closing

middle market quotation for an Ordinary Share as derived from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the five
business days immediately preceding the day on which the Ordinary Share is contracted to be purchased (exclusive of
expenses); and

(c) the minimum price which may be paid for an Ordinary Share, is 10p (exclusive of expenses).
The authority hereby conferred shall, unless renewed prior to such time, expire on the earlier of the date falling eighteen months
after the passing of this resolution and the conclusion of the Company’s next annual general meeting, save that the Company
may before such expiry enter into a new contract under which a purchase of Ordinary Shares may be completed or executed
wholly or partly after such expiry and the Company may purchase Ordinary Shares in pursuance of such contract as if the
authority conferred hereby had not expired.

15. That the draft regulations contained in the document submitted to the Meeting and signed by the Chairman for the purpose of
identification be and they are hereby approved and adopted as the Articles of Association of the Company in substitution for and
to the exclusion of all existing Articles of Association.

Registered Office By order of the Board
Wingrove House L Dent
Ponteland Road Secretary
Newcastle upon Tyne NE5 3DP 13th October 2005

Notes:
(i) Any member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and, on a poll, to vote instead of

the member.  A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

(ii) Pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001, only those shareholders registered at 2.30pm on
15th November 2005 will be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting in respect of the numbers of shares registered in their
names at that time.  Subsequent changes to the register will be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend
and vote at the meeting.

(iii) Copies of contracts of service of the directors with the Company and the register of the directors’ interests will be available for
inspection at the place of the meeting from 2.15pm until the conclusion of the meeting.
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Directors’ Report

The directors submit their report and the accounts for the year ended 30th June 2005.

ACTIVITIES OF THE GROUP
The Group's principal activity continues to be housebuilding and development.

A full review of the Group's performance and prospects can be found in the Chairman's Statement on pages 4 and 5, and in the
Chief Executive’s Review on pages 6 to 18.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit on ordinary activities after taxation for the year ended 30th June 2005 was £290.7m (2004 £260.5m).  

An interim dividend of 8.99p per share (2004 6.90p) was paid on 20th May 2005 and it is proposed to pay a final dividend of
17.99p per share (2004 14.68p) on 18th November 2005 to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 21st October
2005.

The dividends paid and proposed to be paid amount to £63.9m (2004 £51.4m).  

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The notice of the annual general meeting on page 23 contains three resolutions relating to the Company’s share capital.

Resolution number 12 requests shareholder approval to renew for one year the directors' authority to allot unissued shares in
the capital of the Company and Resolution number 13 requests shareholders to authorise the directors to allot shares for cash in
the context of a rights issue and otherwise up to a limit equal to 5% of the issued share capital without initially offering such shares
to existing shareholders.  The directors consider that the Company should maintain an adequate margin of unissued shares for use,
for example, in connection with a future acquisition although they have no present intention of issuing any shares except to satisfy
options under the Company’s share option schemes.

Under Resolution number 14, the company is seeking renewal for a further year of its authority to make purchases in the market
of its own ordinary shares subject to specified limits.  Purchases under this authority will only be made on the London Stock
Exchange and will be funded from distributable profits.  Following implementation of new treasury shares legislation, any ordinary
shares so purchased may either be cancelled or held by the company in treasury.  The company would consider whether to hold any
ordinary shares that it purchases in treasury at the time of purchase.  Any ordinary shares held in treasury would be available for re-
issue (including pursuant to the authority conferred by resolution number 13).  

In seeking this authority, the Board is not indicating any commitment to buy back ordinary shares.  The Board will only exercise
the authority if it considers that the purchases of ordinary shares can be expected to result in an increase in earnings per share and
would be in the best interests of shareholders generally.

The total number of options to subscribe for equity shares outstanding as at 28th September 2005 was 9,367,125 (being 3.9%
of the issued share capital at that date and representing 4.8% of the share capital which would be in issue if both the existing
authority to purchase shares granted at the 2004 AGM and the authority being sought were fully utilised).

Under Resolution number 15, which will be proposed as a special resolution, the Company is seeking shareholder approval for
the adoption by the Company of new Articles of Association.  As the Company’s current Articles of Association (the “Current
Articles”) were adopted in 1997, the Board has concluded that the time has come to amend and update the Current Articles in
order to reflect the considerable number of changes to, among other things, company law and practice which have taken place since
then.  Because the proposed amendments to the Current Articles are numerous, the Board has decided that the updating process
will be best achieved by adopting an entirely new set of Articles of Association (the “New Articles”).  The Circular to Shareholders
dated 13th October 2005 explains more fully the material differences between the Current Articles and the proposed New Articles.

DIRECTORS AND THEIR SHAREHOLDINGS
The current directors of the Company are listed on page 22.  Mr W Shannon was appointed a director on 1st September 2005.

All other directors listed on page 22 held office throughout the financial year.   

The beneficial interests of the directors and their families in the ordinary share capital of the Company during the relevant year
are shown below:

Ordinary shares of 10p each 30th June 2005 1st July 2004
Fully Executive share Fully Executive share
paid options paid options

C G Toner 8,000 – 8,000 –
D A Pretty 100,325 551,759 91,235 620,000
H Walker 273,877 772,801 273,877 634,679
P H Ashworth 5,700 – 5,700 –
S J Boyes 65,238 336,018 45,238 370,917
R J Davies – – – –
C A Dearlove 65,710 331,406 54,646 834,275
C Fenton 9,973 215,376 9,973 112,275
P R Gieron 96,089 344,734 86,999 629,633
G K Hester 61,264 344,734 56,264 349,633
A E Kilburn 4,000 – 4,000 –
M Pescod 10,000 – 10,000 –
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At 30th June 2005 the executive directors had a potential future interest in 4,414,640 ordinary shares which are held by the
Barratt Developments PLC Employee Benefit Trust.

Details of movements in the directors’ interests in executive share options are shown in the Remuneration Report on page 34.

No notification had been received of any change in the above interests during the period 30th June 2005 to 28th September
2005.

Under the provisions of Article 87 of the Company’s memorandum and articles of association, Mr C G Toner, Mr D A Pretty and
Mr H Walker offer themselves for re-election. Mr W Shannon retires in accordance with the provisions of Article 86 and offers
himself for re-election.  Mr P H Ashworth will retire at the annual general meeting and will not seek re-election.

At no time during or at the end of the year did any director have a material interest in a contract of significance in relation to
the business of the Group, other than the transactions detailed in note 26 to the accounts.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Board believes that in terms of the overall direction and control of the Company effective corporate governance will come

principally from the values, standards and disciplines it seeks to apply in dealings with shareholders, customers, staff, suppliers,
contractors and other stakeholders.  Many of the Company’s core values and standards are set out in a range of procedures and
practice guidelines which are extensively communicated throughout the Group.  However, external governance codes set the
framework for our internal standards and we therefore seek to comply with established best practice in all areas of corporate
governance.

The Company is committed to the principles of corporate governance set out in the Combined Code on Corporate Governance
issued by the Financial Reporting Council in July 2003 (“the Code”).

Statement of Compliance
Throughout the year ended 30th June 2005 the Company complied with the provisions of the Code except in the following

area.

• Schedule A to the Code recommends that in general the annual bonus of executive directors should not be pensionable.  By
virtue of long-standing contractual arrangements the pensionable salaries of Mr S J Boyes, Mr C A Dearlove, Mr P R Gieron
and Mr H Walker included bonus.  As detailed in the Remuneration Report on pages 34 to 41, with effect from 1st July 2005
the pensionable salaries of all directors, including the above named, will be based on basic salary only.

The Structure
The Company is headed by the Group Board which, during the year, comprised the Chairman, four non-executive Directors and

seven executive Directors.  During the year an additional non-executive Director, Mr W Shannon, was recruited and joined the Board
with effect from 1st September 2005. The Director biographies and details of service are set out on page 22.

The Board delegates management of the business to the Executive Board led by the Group Chief Executive.  The other members
of the Executive Board are the Group Deputy Chief Executive, the Group Finance Director, the Group Corporate Director and
Company Secretary and the Regional Chairmen of our six operating Regions covering our 34 housebuilding divisions.  Each
housebuilding division is headed by a Managing Director and a local management team which make up the divisional board, each
of which is chaired by a Regional Chairman.  Each divisional board meets monthly to oversee local housebuilding operations and
performance.  Although each division is run and monitored as a freestanding business, they each operate within clearly defined
central parameters in relation to strategic direction and financial control.  This tried and tested structure enables the divisions to
be responsive to local demand and market conditions, whilst at the same time benefiting from the disciplines, financial strength
and economies of scale of a large national Group.

Decision Making
The Group board is responsible to shareholders for the entrepreneurial leadership of the company within a framework of policy

and decision making controls for the setting of Group strategy, assessing and managing risk and ensuring that the necessary
financial and human resources are in place to enable strategic aims to be met.  The Board is also responsible for measuring and
monitoring performance against key financial and operational indicators and for determining the Company’s values and standards.

The Group Board has adopted a reserved list of matters and decisions which can only be approved by the Board and which is
reviewed annually.  The list of reserved matters includes the formulation of strategy, the approval of budgets, business plans,
dividends and financial statements and the approval of major capital investment and business acquisitions and disposals.  The list
of reserved matters was last reviewed on 13th May, 2005.

Directors’ Report
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The Executive Board is responsible for implementing approved strategy and business plans and for monitoring operational and
financial performance against agreed objectives and budgets.  The Executive Board also formulates budgets and capital
expenditure proposals for approval by the Group Board and is responsible for the efficient day to day management of the business.

Defined levels of autonomy and responsibility are set for all senior management in relation to the approval of financial
commitments and key risk areas such as land purchase, cash management, health and safety and environmental performance.

Board Meetings and Membership
The Board met on seven occasions during the year, including one full day meeting set aside for a comprehensive review of

Group business strategy.  Twice a year the Board meets in one of our divisional operating units setting aside time for site visits and
the opportunity to meet with divisional management and local staff.  All Directors were in attendance at all meetings apart from
the September meeting for which Mr R Davies gave his apologies.

The Code requires a balance of executive and non-executive Directors so that no individual or group can dominate the Board’s
decision taking.  The number and calibre of the non-executive Directors on the Board, together with their diverse backgrounds and
experience, ensures that this principle is met.  The Board considers that numerical balance between executive and non-executive
Directors in line with Code expectations should be achievable by the end of 2006 as a result of natural turnover.

The Board believes that the Chairman and all non-executive Directors, with the exception of Mr P H Ashworth, are wholly
independent in that they have no business or other relationship with the Group that might influence their independence of
judgement.  Mr Ashworth has an ongoing business relationship with the Company, details of which are disclosed on page 53.  
Mr Ashworth is not a member of the Audit and Remuneration Committees and will stand down as a non-executive Director
immediately following the Annual General Meeting on 17th November 2005.

The division of responsibility between the Chairman of the Board, Mr C G Toner, and the Chief Executive, Mr D A Pretty, is
clearly defined and has been approved by the Board.  The Chairman leads the Board in the determination of strategy and in the
achievement of its objectives.  He is also responsible for organising the business of the Board, for setting its agenda and for
ensuring its effectiveness.  The Chairman facilitates the effective contribution of non-executive Directors and also ensures that the
Board receives timely and accurate information so as properly to conduct its business as well as ensuring that communications
with shareholders are effective.

The Group Chief Executive has direct charge of the Executive Directors and is responsible for the management of all Group
operations and day to day activities.  It is the Group Chief Executive’s responsibility to formulate strategic options for consideration
by the Board; to deliver the strategic objectives set by the Board and to ensure that the Group has in place appropriate risk
management and control systems.

The Board has appointed Mr A E Kilburn as Senior Independent Director.  The Senior Independent Director has specific
responsibility for co-ordinating the evaluation by the Nominations Committee of the Chairman’s effectiveness as well as being a
point of contact for shareholders in the event of there being any material issues or concerns which the Chairman and/or Chief
Executive have failed adequately to address.

The Group Company Secretary, a practising solicitor, attends all Board and Committee Meetings and all directors have access
to his advice and, if necessary, to independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Board Committees
The Board has established three standing committees, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the

Nominations Committee, the functions of which are clearly specified within defined terms of reference and which are reviewed
annually.  The terms of reference were last reviewed in December 2004 in line with the requirements of the Code.

The Audit Committee
During the year the Audit Committee comprised Mr M Pescod (Chairman), Mr R J Davies and Mr A E Kilburn, all of whom are

wholly independent non-executive Directors.  The Audit Committee met on five occasions throughout the year and all members
were present at each meeting.  The Committee members are considered to possess recent and relevant financial experience.

Under its terms of reference the Audit Committee monitors the integrity of the Group’s financial statements and any formal
announcements relating to the Group’s performance.  The Committee is responsible for monitoring the effectiveness, independence
and objectivity of the external audit process and for making recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment, re-
appointment and remuneration of the external auditors.  The Committee is also responsible for monitoring the Group’s financial
management and reporting systems and for assessing the integrity and effectiveness of its accounting procedures, system of
internal control and the process for identifying and monitoring the risks facing the Group.  Lastly, the Audit Committee is
responsible for reviewing the terms of reference of the internal audit function, its work programme and priorities and the quarterly
reports on its work during the year.

Directors’ Report
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In the year to 30th June 2005 the Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities by:-

• reviewing the interim and annual financial statements, trading updates and related Stock Exchange announcements made
during the year;

• reviewing the external auditor’s work plan for the audit of Group accounts;

• reviewing the external auditor’s annual audit report, management letter and the forward action plan in relation to all material
issues identified in the annual audit process;

• reviewing the internal audit function, its resourcing, work programmes, the results of internal audits and the adequacy of
management’s response;

• reviewing Group internal control and risk management systems;

• approving a policy regulating the Group’s use of external auditors for non-audit services under which assignments exceeding a
specified value must be pre-approved by the Audit Committee.

The Committee invites the Group Chief Executive, the Group Finance Director and other members of senior management and
senior representatives of the external auditors to attend meetings as required.

Remuneration Committee
During the year the Remuneration Committee comprised Mr A E Kilburn (Chairman), Mr R J Davies, Mr M Pescod and Mr C G

Toner.  All members of the Committee are considered by the Company to be wholly independent.  During the year under review the
Remuneration Committee met on eight occasions with all members present.  The Committee operates under defined terms of
reference which were last reviewed in December, 2004.  The Committee’s principal responsibilities are:-

• reviewing and approving executive remuneration policy, including the terms and conditions of employment for executive
Directors and their individual remuneration packages;

• approving the rules of and the basis of participation in Group share option, long-term performance plans and cash based bonus
incentive schemes and the specific awards, grants and payments made under any such schemes;

• obtaining independent advice in relation to executive Director remuneration;

• monitoring Group remuneration policy against competitor and industry norms.

During the year the Remuneration Committee undertook a comprehensive review of executive remuneration policy, full details
of which are set out in the Remuneration Report on pages 34 to 41.

Nominations Committee
During the year the Nominations Committee comprised Mr C G Toner (Chairman), Mr P H Ashworth, Mr R J Davies, Mr A E

Kilburn, Mr M Pescod and Mr D A Pretty.  The majority of members of the Committee are considered by the Company to be wholly
independent.  The Nominations Committee met on three occasions during the year and all members were present for each meeting.

The Nominations Committee operates under defined terms of reference and its principal responsibilities include:-

• ensuring the Board is comprised of the right balance of skills, knowledge and experience;

• identifying and nominating for approval by the Board candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when they arise;

• overseeing the Group’s succession planning process;

• undertaking the process of Board, Committee and individual Director performance evaluation.

In recruiting and selecting new Directors the Nominations Committee has followed a rigorous process with the initial short-
listing being prepared using external recruitment consultants followed by one to one meetings with members of the Committee and
the final selection being made by the Board as a whole.  In the year ended 30th June 2005 the Nominations Committee:-

• reviewed and agreed the succession plan for the Group and Executive Boards and for the divisional management teams;

• undertook a recruitment selection process involving external consultants Spencer Stuart, to appoint an additional non-
executive Director, Mr W Shannon, with effect from 1st September 2005.

Directors’ Report
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Performance Evaluation
During the year a formal and structured process of evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees and individual

Directors was undertaken by the Nominations Committee under the leadership and direction of the Group Chairman.  The main
aims of the process, which is based on the guidance set out in the Higgs’ report “Review of the role and effectiveness on non-
executive directors”, are to:-

• promote a culture of continuous improvement, learning and development;

• identify gaps or problem areas in terms of knowledge and skills;

• assist with succession planning;

• improve openness, communication and motivation.

Central to the evaluation process are the Board’s annual review of business strategy and the objectives and performance targets
set by the Board each May for itself, its Committees and for the Chief Executive and, through him, for the Executive Board, against
which overall performance is measured.  In this way the evaluation is undertaken within clear parameters linked to overall strategy,
operational and financial performance and the role and contributions made by the Board, its Committees and individual Directors
in the attainment of the agreed objectives and targets.

To facilitate the process the Chairman met with all Directors and the Company Secretary on an individual basis, enabling each
to give their views on the effectiveness of the Board and its Committees, in particular by identifying any shortcomings in
procedures, working methods or any other areas of weakness requiring attention and improvement.  In addition, the performance
of individual non-executive Directors and the Chief Executive was appraised by the Chairman and the performance of the Executive
team by the Chief Executive.  The Senior Independent Director led the appraisal of the Chairman’s performance after obtaining
the views of all Directors in “one to one” discussions.

The results of these various interviews, assessments and appraisals were then reviewed and evaluated by the Nominations
Committee and reported to the Group Board.  On the evidence provided the Board and its Committees are satisfied with their overall
effectiveness and balance and with the performance and contribution of the individual Directors.  The results of the exercise will
be used in setting Board and Committee objectives for the coming year and in reviewing and implementing the Board and Executive
succession plan.  It is intended next year to introduce a performance evaluation questionnaire for completion by all Directors in
accordance with the Higgs’ “Suggestions for Good Practice” Guidelines.

Accountability
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and

accounting standards and which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit and
loss of the Group for the period under review.  The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
the Group and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Board believes that the financial statements and reviews contained in this report provide a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s position and prospects.

The Directors confirm that suitable accounting policies have been used and applied consistently and that reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates have been made in the preparation of the financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2005.

The Annual Report and Accounts will be published on the Group’s Investor Relations Website.  The maintenance and integrity
of the Group’s website is the responsibility of the Directors.  The work undertaken by the external auditors does not include
consideration of these matters.  Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Going Concern
After making due enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in

operation for the foreseeable future.  For this reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

Internal Control and Risk Management
The Board confirms that it has maintained a system of internal control in accordance with Code provisions C.2 and C.2.1 and

that this statement has been prepared in accordance with the “Turnbull Guidance” on internal control appended to the Code.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness.  The system is designed
to manage risks that may impede the achievement of the Group’s business objectives rather than to eliminate those risks entirely.
The system of internal control therefore provides only reasonable, not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The system of internal control does, however, provide reasonable assurance that potential difficulties can be identified promptly and
appropriate remedial action taken.

Directors’ Report
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It is the responsibility of the Executive Directors and senior management to implement and maintain the Group’s internal
control and risk management systems in accordance with policy approved by the Board.  The key aspects of the Group’s internal
control and risk management framework are as follows:-

• A clear organisational structure with defined levels of authority and responsibility for each operating division.

• Comprehensive financial and management reporting systems under which financial and operating performance is consistently
reviewed against budget and forecasts at divisional, regional and Group level on a monthly basis.

• Key risk areas such as land purchase, planning permission, production, sales, quality, customer care and service standards,
adverse publicity, the market, corporate responsibility, environmental and health and safety performance, are embedded in the
Group’s monthly management reporting system so that risk identification and the control of risk are a routine aspect of
management responsibility.

• Internal control and risk management systems are supported by the Group Internal Audit Team which is responsible for advising
senior management, the Executive Directors and, through the Audit Committee, the Board on the operations and effectiveness
of those systems.  The Internal Audit Team undertakes a planned programme of audit appraisals across Group operations
approved by the Audit Committee, including full divisional audits and targeted audits of key risk areas.  Material issues
identified in these audits and follow-up action plans are reviewed by the Executive Directors and by the Board on a quarterly
basis.

During the year the Audit Committee has undertaken a review of the staffing and resourcing of the Internal Audit Team with a
view to the further development of Group risk management systems.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control in accordance with the Turnbull Guidance and is
satisfied that it is in accordance with that guidance. 

A “whistle blowing” policy and procedure has been established under which directors, management and staff can report in
confidence any concerns they may have of malpractice, financial irregularity, breaches of health and safety, environmental or other
Group procedures, discrimination, harassment or any other unethical behaviour.

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY
During the year Barratt Developments PLC has made considerable progress in Corporate Responsibility (CR). 

We have developed our CR policy and added seven strategic objectives. These are to help embed into the business our actions
in the areas of: governance and management systems, creating value for society, managing our environmental impact, procurement
and design, occupational health and safety, employment and diversity and our engagement with our stakeholders and communities. 

This year we have also evolved a risk-based approach to CR. We carried out a non-financial risk assessment ensuring that plans
and procedures are in place for risks of highest priority. This approach will also help us to prepare our Operating and Financial
Review next year. We identified priority areas of risk as: climate change, our supply chain, access to land and planning, water
supply, unfavourable media exposure, workplace accidents, the lack of skilled labour in construction and customer and community
dissatisfaction.

Our key achievements have been in the development of our CR-related management systems - which work towards helping us
minimise some of the risks above. We have introduced an ISO14001 certified environmental management system at six of our
thirty two divisions and intend to roll this out to a further eight divisions next year. We have introduced a Health and Safety audit
system to prepare the Group Health and Safety systems for accreditation to the international standard OHSAS 180001 in
forthcoming years. Barratt Northampton gained this accreditation this year. 

We are already beginning to see the business benefits that our commitment in these areas is bringing. We have achieved
considerable improvements in our health and safety performance with no Health and Safety Executive (HSE) interventions this
year. In environmental terms we have also significantly reduced the average tonnes of waste generated per development. We will
continue to monitor our other impacts going forward to form a clear picture of where we can bring further benefits. 

Next year we intend to focus on the long term environmental and social legacy of the houses we build. We will complete an
“ecovillage” show complex at Buckshaw Village near Chorley which will pilot a number of environmental technologies and aim to
build a second similar village in the South East in the near future. We will use these developments to gauge consumer preferences
and inform our designs going forward. 

We will continue to work closely with all our stakeholders. This year we have concentrated on engagement with investors and
non-governmental organisations and also our customers. Next year our focus will be on our supply chain, looking at packaging and
the environmental performance of the products we purchase. We have also expanded our Human Resources and Training team
which will help us to work towards managing, recruiting, retaining and training one of our key assets – our people. 

Directors’ Report



31

Our achievements are recognised in the second WWF/Insight Investment survey of the major housebuilders in which we
improved our score from 31% last year to 69% this year. We are aware that there is more to do, but are pleased that we have
achieved so much in the last twelve months. Further details of this progress and our future objectives and targets are available in
our second Corporate Responsibility Report, at www.barratt-investor-relations.co.uk. Detailed CR-related policy statements are also
available on this website.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE AND SUSTAINABILITY
Through its environmental policy the Group seeks to restore and enhance the natural environments in which its developments

are set to improve the environmental performance of its products and to minimise the potential adverse impacts of our business
operations.  For 30 years Barratt has been at the forefront of urban regeneration in the UK and over 82% of our developments now
utilise brownfield land; in the South East the figure rises to 95%.

All of our land reclamation projects, often involving difficult sites in urban locations, are subject to rigorous feasibility
assessments, including environmental and risk surveys undertaken by specialist external advisors, identifying both potential
adverse impacts and opportunities to preserve and enhance existing environmental features.  Site preparation and construction
operations are monitored in close conjunction with the National House Building Council (NHBC), local authorities and the
environmental agencies.  We also work closely with our construction teams and contractors to address issues arising from on-site
activities, minimising any disruption to local communities and to encourage efficiency.

Since 2001 we have comprehensively improved waste management performance across all of our site operations and the
standards now achieved are at the forefront of the industry.  Working in conjunction with Wastefile UK, our waste management
facilitator, waste tonnage data is collected and monitored from all operational sites.  All waste is segregated, recovered and
wherever practicable allocated for recycling or reuse.  All operational sites have a controlled auditable waste transfer system,
tracing waste from creation to storage and segregation, collection and disposal or recycling and reuse.

In the year under review there have been no legal breaches of environmental legislation by the Group.

HEALTH AND SAFETY
The Board is committed to the continuous improvement of health and safety performance and during the year work has

continued on the further development of our Group Occupational Health and Safety Management System (OHSMS) introduced
three years ago.  The OHSMS is designed for ease of use to ensure that all staff understand their responsibilities for the
management of health and safety at every stage of the development process from scheme viability, site purchase, tender and
construction through to individual purchaser sales and after sales service.

The OHSMS incorporates as a technical reference the CITB’s GE 700 Site Safety Notes, which are regularly updated to reflect
all statutory regulations, approved codes of practice, HSE guidance and British and European Standards and directives.  GE 700
is also the standard reference for site management health and safety training throughout the industry.

The investment made in the development of our occupational health and safety management systems has led to a sustained
and measurable improvement in the safety standards achieved on our sites.  For the third year running the average safety standard
ratings achieved by the Group as measured by an independent site safety inspection service undertaken by the NHBC have been
ahead of the average ratings of all other national housebuilders using the service.  The incident rate on our sites in the year,
including both notifiable and reportable incidents, was 1,060 per 100,000 employees (including subcontractors) and we have an
ongoing objective to improve on this performance in the year ahead.

EMPLOYMENT POLICY
The Board recognises that employees need to understand and contribute to the broad objectives of the business and seeks to

develop good relations with employees through regular communications and consultation.  Selection for employment and promotion
is based on the objective assessment of ability and experience and the Group is committed to ensuring that its workplaces are free
from unlawful discrimination of any sort.  The Group strives to ensure that its policies and practices provide equal opportunities
for all irrespective of gender, race, ethnic origin, colour, religion, physical disability, mental health, marital status, sexual
orientation or age.

Applications for employment by disabled persons are considered on their merits with due regard to the individual skills and
abilities of the applicant.  Where disability arises in the course of an individual’s employment the Group will seek to enable the
person to continue working by making appropriate adjustments to the working environment and by offering appropriate support and
training.

The Group is committed to employee training and development at all levels of the organisation and endeavours to contribute
to the industry’s future skills base by an extensive recruitment and training programme for apprentices and graduate trainees.
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The Group currently employs 536 apprentices and 59 graduate trainees recruited from communities close to its areas of
operation and its policy is to ensure that the majority of divisions and housebuilding sites employ both graduates and apprentices.
To stimulate further graduate recruitment the Group continues to subscribe to “Graduate Prospects”, a national publication used
by most universities and colleges of further education, and has recently established a recruitment and employment opportunities
website.

The Group works closely with the Construction Industry Training Board (CITB) and the NHBC in training provision and a training
plan is prepared annually linked to identified business priorities and objectives.  Having regard to the nature of our business,
particular focus is given in the training programme to construction management, trade skills, health and safety and customer care.
We have also committed to the Construction Skills Certification Scheme (CSCS) for our employees and subcontractors as part of
the Major House Builders Group Qualified Workforce Initiative.

As a business our commitment to quality and continuous improvement is absolute.  Our National Employee Award scheme
forms an important part of our “Forward Through Quality” initiative which seeks to raise quality and performance standards through
a process of internal monitoring and appraisal.  The Board recognises that the strength and quality of its leadership resource is
crucial to the continued prosperity and commercial success of the business.  The Board is therefore undertaking a review of the
Group’s succession planning arrangements and a management development and support programme linked to our target
operational growth areas is being developed.

This year, an Employment Procedures Guide for Managers was developed and will be launched following the recruitment of
five Regional Human Resource & Training Managers who will assist in the implementation of our strategic and also our day to day
human resource objectives.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
The Board believes that the effective management of investor relations is critical to its relationship with its shareholders and

to the market in which the Company’s shares are held, analysed and traded.  The Group’s corporate governance framework sets
the context for its continuing investor relations programme particularly in respect of key areas such as Board membership,
remuneration and public accountability statements.

During the year the investor communication programme has been taken forward in conjunction with Weber Shandwick Square
Mile our financial PR advisors.  Also the “investor relations” website (www.barratt-investor-relations.co.uk) provides a full Company
profile, regular corporate news updates and access to Company share price and regulatory announcements.  Further shareholder
services have been established whereby shareholders may deal in the Company’s shares via it’s website and also access the
Company’s share register to view their shareholding, with the opportunity to make changes to their account details including the
downloading of appropriate forms and also access the history of their shareholding.

Our annual and interim reports, together with half-yearly trading updates, will continue to be the primary means by which
information about the Group, its Board and its business is communicated to institutional and private shareholders, investors and
analysts.  In addition, other major company publications are also circulated to shareholders, which this year includes the Group’s
second Corporate Responsibility report.  The Annual General Meeting is used to enable all shareholders, both large and small, to
discuss the Group’s operations and progress directly with the Board.  

Information of a price sensitive nature is communicated as required by the Company Secretary to the Company Announcements
Office of the Stock Exchange and the Group strives to ensure that all key information is effectively and clearly communicated.

In addition to the above formal communications, the Group Chief Executive and Group Finance Director meet regularly with
institutional investors and analysts in order to convey an understanding of the Company’s operations, the market and its
management objectives and in the year under review a total of 71 such meetings have been held.  The aim is to meet with major
institutional shareholders at least once a year.  Press releases on the Company’s activities are made to journalists and the media
through the Group Press Office and its external financial public relations consultancy service, Weber Shandwick Square Mile.  The
Group’s joint brokers JPMorgan Cazenove and UBS Investment Bank also work actively on our behalf in an effort to ensure that
investors and potential investors in the business are given reliable information on the Group’s operations, its values and ethos in
order to make informed investment decisions.
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STATUTORY INFORMATION
At 28th September 2005 notification had been received of the following interests which exceed a 3% interest in the issued

share capital of the Company.

Date of Ordinary shares % of issued 
notification of 10p each share capital

FMR Corp 26.09.05 31,111,206 12.86%
Barclays PLC 05.09.05 12,506,021 5.17%
Causeway Capital Management LLC 21.04.05 10,202,259 4.23%
Legal & General Group Plc 27.09.05 7,695,307 3.18%

During the year the Group made charitable donations of £61,000 (2004 £6,000).  No political contributions were made during
the year.  

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group will be required to adopt International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for the year ending 30th June 2006

which will include restated comparative information for 2005.  Our core policies for turnover and profit recognition and the value
of land and work in progress should be unaffected.  The major areas of change are expected to relate to accounting for pension
costs, share based payments, financial instruments and the timing of dividend payment recognition.  A team has been established
to assess the full impact on the Group of IFRS, which are currently undergoing a period of further change.

CREDITOR PAYMENTS
Each Group company is responsible for agreeing the detail of terms and conditions relating to transactions with its suppliers.

It is Group policy to abide by the agreed terms of payment with suppliers where the goods and services have been supplied in
accordance with the relevant terms and conditions of contract. Implementation of this policy resulted in a supplier payment period
for the Company of 33 days (2004 36 days) for its trade creditors at 30th June 2005.

AUDITORS
A resolution to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors to the Company will be proposed at the annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board
L Dent
Secretary
Newcastle upon Tyne 13th October 2005
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Introduction
This year’s remuneration report is presented to shareholders in accordance with the requirements of the Directors’

Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 (the “Regulations”).  In preparing the report the Remuneration Committee has reviewed
remuneration policy for executive directors and in so doing has reaffirmed its commitment to ensure that overall remuneration
continues to be linked to organisational and individual performance and has a clear alignment with the interests of shareholders.

Remuneration Committee
The Committee operates within terms of reference and governance policies approved by the Board and is responsible on behalf

of the Board for:

• executive remuneration policy

• determining the service conditions and remuneration of all executive directors;

• the evaluation of executive director performance with regard to the award of share options, annual bonus and other performance
based remuneration;

• obtaining independent professional advice in relation to executive director remuneration.

During the year under review the Remuneration Committee has met on eight occasions, with all members present.

Membership and Proceedings of the Remuneration Committee
The members of the Remuneration Committee are all non-executive directors and during the year have comprised Mr A E

Kilburn (Chairman), Mr C G Toner, Mr M Pescod and Mr R J Davies.  All Committee members are considered to be wholly
independent with no financial interest, other than as shareholders, in the Committee’s decisions.  The Group Chief Executive
attends meetings of the Committee as required but he is not present when matters affecting his own remuneration are considered.  

Other than as expressly identified in this report the Remuneration Committee has complied with the Combined Code on
Corporate Governance.  The Committee recognises its accountability on executive remuneration to shareholders through this report
and in determining future remuneration policy it will consider both the shareholders’ vote on the report and views expressed by
shareholders on the detail of the report.

Advice
Advice is provided to the Remuneration Committee by the Company Secretary, Mr L Dent, a practising solicitor.  Mr Dent also

acts as secretary to the Committee.  In addition, Watson Wyatt LLP were appointed by the Committee to advise on a range of issues,
including the current market positioning of the Group’s executive remuneration having regard to a comparator group of other
housebuilding companies, including Persimmon, Wimpey, Taylor Woodrow and Bellway.

Mercer Human Resource Consulting Limited have advised the Company in relation to various pensions issues and, with effect
from 10th July 2004, were appointed to provide actuarial services to the Barratt Group Pension and Life Assurance Scheme.

Remuneration Policy
During the year the Committee has undertaken a full review of executive remuneration. To address structural concerns raised

by major shareholders changes have been made to certain elements of the package, and these are detailed in this report. The
fundamental aims of this review were to ensure that executive remuneration:

• is fully aligned with the performance of the Company and the returns received by shareholders;

• rewards the sustained growth and profitability of the business;

• conforms with market-leading best practice.

Throughout the process the Committee has consulted with major shareholders to ensure their support for the approach taken.
This report details the Company’s remuneration policy for 2005/06 and, so far as practicable, for subsequent years.  Any changes
made to the policy will be identified in subsequent Remuneration Reports to shareholders.  Central to the Group remuneration
policy is recognition that the sustained growth and profitability of our business is determined in no short measure by the skill and
commitment of the executive team.  The reward policy for executive directors seeks to provide remuneration and other service
conditions which will attract, retain, motivate and reward executive directors of the highest calibre within the industry’s highly
competitive employment market.  Within these broad objectives the executive remuneration package is based on the following
principles:
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• the greater part of remuneration paid to executives should be linked to the achievement of demanding performance
targets; currently over 50% of the total executive remuneration package is performance based;

• performance related remuneration should align the interests of executives with those of shareholders by setting
performance targets based on measures of shareholder return;

• total remuneration for outstanding performance should be competitive with that available elsewhere in the sector.

The Remuneration Package for Executive Directors
The remuneration package for executive directors comprises:

• basic salary;

• annual performance related bonus;

• long-term share incentives;

• pension and other benefits.

Typically the performance related element of executive remuneration makes up more than 50% of the total package
excluding pension benefits.  The performance conditions which apply to the performance related element of executive
remuneration are the same for all executive directors and are set out in the following sections of this report.

Basic Salary
Basic salaries for executive directors are a fixed annual sum payable monthly in cash.  Salaries are set having regard to

individual responsibilities, skills and experience and are currently based on the market rate for similar positions in large
national housebuilding companies.  Salaries were included in the review of executive remuneration carried out during the year
by the Remuneration Committee and a repositioning will take effect from 1st July 2005. The increases reflect a move to a
more competitive market positioning with reference to the peer group, and also the adjustments to other parts of the package.
Although the increases to basic salary are significant when looked at in isolation compared with the previous year, the value
of the total reward package, for the same level of performance, has not increased from last year because of adjustments made
to other elements. These other changes are detailed in the report below. 

£ £

D A Pretty 507,500 (2004 : 416,500)
H Walker 348,000 (2004 : 300,000)
S J Boyes 290,600 (2004 : 250,000)
C A Dearlove 272,600 (2004 : 235,000)
C Fenton 290,600 (2004 : 250,000)
P R Gieron 290,600 (2004 : 250,000)
G K Hester 290,600 (2004 : 250,000)

Annual Profit Related Bonus
Until the financial year ended 30th June 2005 each executive director participated in an annual profit related bonus

scheme based on the annual level of the Group’s pre-tax profit with awards made at 0.1333% of the Group pre-tax profit for
the Group Chief Executive, 0.1165% for the Group Deputy Chief Executive and 0.1% for all other executive directors.  A
similar annual bonus scheme is operated for senior management in all divisions based on a percentage of pre-tax profit for
each division.

A new discretionary bonus scheme will replace the above contractual bonus arrangement with effect from 1st July 2005.
Annual bonus payments will be dependent upon the achievement of demanding financial objectives and key strategic
measures for the business, set annually by the Group Board. For the financial year 2005/06 90% of the bonus payment will
be based on pre-tax profits and 10% will be based on the achievement of customer satisfaction targets. For the attainment
of 100% of target the amount of bonus will be 130% of basic salary. The maximum amount of bonus which can be received
by any executive is 180% of basic salary, for the attainment of 125% of profit target. Previously there was no cap to the bonus
payment. If actual performance falls below 80% of target then no bonus will be payable. Payment of the bonus is on a
progressive scale with proportionately more being attainable for performance over and above target.
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As part of the changes to the annual bonus the Committee is proposing that a proportion of the bonus is deferred on a
compulsory basis, with an opportunity for additional voluntary deferral. The deferred amounts will be converted into shares, with
an opportunity for additional matching shares to be received if further performance targets are met.  For this purpose, a new
plan will, with shareholders’ approval, be established; full details of the new plan are set out in the Shareholders’ Circular
accompanying this Annual Report.

Share Option Plan
In November 1997 the Company adopted the current Executive Share Option Plan (the “Plan”).  The grant of share options

under the Plan is at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee, taking into account individual performance and the overall
performance of the Group.  Options must be held for a minimum of three years from the date of grant before they can be
exercised and lapse if not exercised within ten years.  The exercise of options granted under the Plan is subject to the
achievement of an objective performance condition set by the Remuneration Committee namely that the growth in the earnings
per share of the Company over a period of three consecutive financial years should exceed the growth in the Retail Price Index
by at least 6% for options granted in 1997 and 1998 and by at least 9% for those options granted in and since 1999.

In accordance with best practice the Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance condition and for options granted
after 1st July 2004 the three consecutive financial years over which the earnings per share growth target must be met will
commence with the financial year during which the options are granted.  If the target is not met over this fixed three-year period,
then options will lapse.  There will be no retesting of performance.

As part of the review the Committee has determined that in future no further options will be granted under the Plan. All long-
term share awards will be made under the Long-Term Performance Plan which has more demanding performance targets than
those attaching to share options, thereby increasing the alignment between executive and shareholder reward. The Committee
also believe that this provides a more focused approach to incentives. Options which have been granted in previous years remain
unchanged and details of the terms of these outstanding awards are set out below.

Long-Term Performance Plan
The Long-Term Performance Plan (the “LTPP”) was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held in

November 2003 to take effect from 1st July 2003. As a consequence of the changes being made to the total remuneration
package of executives, as described above, and in particular the cessation of use of the Executive Share Option Plan, the
Committee is proposing that the LTPP be amended to allow awards of up to a maximum of 200% of basic salary.  Details are
set out in the Shareholders’ Circular.

Awards under the LTPP are based on an annual allocation of notional ordinary shares equivalent in value to a maximum of
100% of basic salary with vesting taking place at the expiry of the three year performance period of the plan, subject to
attainment of the agreed performance targets.  50% of the award will vest on attainment of a performance target based on Basic
Earnings Per Share (“EPS”) growth and 50% based on Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”).  A vesting schedule has been
established so that, in terms of EPS growth, the full 50% will vest if EPS growth exceeds the Retail Price Index (“RPI”) plus
45% and 10% will vest if EPS growth exceeds RPI plus 30%, with straight line vesting between these two points.  The remaining
50% will vest subject to TSR performance measured against the constituents of the FTSE Construction and Building Materials
Sector Index.  Again a vesting schedule has been established so that the full 50% will vest if TSR growth is in the upper quartile
of the comparative index and 10% vesting if TSR growth is at the median of the index, with straight line vesting between the
two points.  Details of notional share awards made under the LTPP during the last year are set out below.

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the performance targets for the awards to be granted under the LTPP in 2005.
The Remuneration Committee has concluded that, in the current market in which the Company is operating, new performance
targets are required in order to ensure that the LTPP remains an effective incentive to participants.  As with existing awards,
50% of the award will be based on EPS growth and 50% on TSR performance.

For the EPS element of the target, the full 50% will vest if EPS growth exceeds the RPI Index plus 18% and 10% will vest
if EPS growth exceeds the RPI plus 9%; for performance in between the award will vest on a straightline basis.

For the TSR element, the Company currently measures performance against the companies which make up the FTSE
Construction and Buildings Materials Sector Index.  It is understood that, from next year, housebuilding companies will be moved
into a new sector of Household Goods.  That sector will include companies that are not comparable to the Company.  Accordingly,
it is proposed that, for future awards, the comparator companies will be made up of listed housebuilders.  A vesting schedule
will be drawn up by taking an average of the two highest and two lowest TSR figures for such companies over the performance
period and creating a mid-point and an upper quartile from those two figures.  The full 50% will vest if the Company’s TSR is
within the upper quartile and 10% will vest at the mid-point mark; for performance in between, the award will vest on a
straightline basis.

The Remuneration Committee considers that, in the current economic and business climate, these targets are as stringent
as the existing targets were when the LTPP was first established.  The Remuneration Committee will review the targets for future
awards annually in the light of the then existing circumstances and, if appropriate, impose more stringent targets.  Shareholders’
approval for the new targets will be sought at the Annual General Meeting.

No. of shares subject to an award

2005 2004 Total

D A Pretty 72,815 78,510 151,325
H Walker 52,448 49,020 101,468
S J Boyes 43,706 43,137 86,843
C A Dearlove 41,084 44,118 85,202
C Fenton 43,706 34,314 78,020
P R Gieron 43,706 46,863 90,569
G K Hester 43,706 46,863 90,569

341,171 342,825 683,996
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Pension Benefits
All executive directors are members of the Group’s defined benefit pension scheme, which is now closed to new entrants.

The scheme entitles the executive directors with the exceptions of Mr D A Pretty, Mr G K Hester and Mr C Fenton to a pension
on retirement at age 65 of two thirds of final pensionable salary after 40 years membership of the scheme.  The executive
directors are also eligible for dependants pension and an insured lump sum of four times pensionable salary on death in
service.  The final pension is calculated from the highest yearly average pensionable salary over three consecutive years during
the last ten years of service.

The entitlements of Mr D A Pretty, Mr G K Hester and Mr C Fenton are restricted by the earnings cap imposed under the
Finance Act 1989.  Under a contractual arrangement entered into in 1992 Mr D A Pretty’s pension accrues at the rate of
1/30th but it remains restricted to the earnings cap.

As disclosed last year special arrangements have been put in place for Mr D A Pretty in order to secure his services until
retirement. Based on calculations carried out by the actuary to the Group scheme Mr D A Pretty receives, with effect from 1st
July 2003, a supplement equal to 50% of basic salary, as disclosed in the emoluments table below.

In respect of the remaining executive directors, and following the review of executive remuneration, changes will be made
to their pension provision with effect from 1st July 2005. The annual profit related bonus will not be included in the
calculation of final pensionable salary, for executive directors, for service after 1st July 2005.  This complies with best practice
as set out in the Combined Code for Corporate Governance.  In recognition of the fact that the inclusion of profit related bonus
in the calculation of pensionable salary is a contractual arrangement of some 25 years standing, which clearly pre-dates the
introduction of the Combined Code, supplemental payments will be made to each executive director in respect of the period
up to 6th April 2006 being the date of the introduction of the Lifetime Allowance Pension Rules.  From this date new
provisions will apply which take account of the new Revenue and Customs regulations. The Committee believes that these
payments, which are set out below, address shareholder concerns regarding the inclusion of bonus in the pensionable salary
definition, while recognising the fact that this is a contractual arrangement and one which applies equally to all Group
management and staff as well as to executive directors.  

£

H Walker 87,700
S J Boyes 44,900
C A Dearlove 55,800
C Fenton 78,300
P R Gieron 52,600
G K Hester 99,300

Service Contracts
All executive directors are engaged on identical terms on the basis of one year rolling contracts which can be terminated

by 12 months notice given by the Company or by 12 months notice given by the executive at any time.  There are no specific
provisions for compensation on early termination.  The contracts entitle executive directors to the provision of a Company car
and membership of a private health care scheme.

Individual Executive Directors Service Contracts:

Executive Directors Service Contract Date Effective Date Notice Period

D A Pretty 23.01.1997 01.02.1997 12 months
H Walker 23.01.1997 01.02.1997 12 months
S J Boyes 25.06.2001 01.07.2001 12 months
C A Dearlove 23.01.1997 01.02.1997 12 months
C Fenton 01.07.2003 01.07.2003 12 months
P R Gieron 13.06.1997 01.07.1997 12 months
G K Hester  20.10.1999 29.11.1999 12 months

Non-Executive Directors’ Remuneration
The remuneration of the non-executive directors is set by the Board on the recommendation of a Committee of executive

directors and having regard to published data for the remuneration of non-executive directors in listed companies. The
remuneration of the Chairman is set by the Board on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee and having regard
to published data for the remuneration of non-executive chairmen in listed companies.
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With effect from 1st July 2005 the fee payable to Mr C G Toner as non-executive chairman was increased from £93,000
to £150,000 per annum.

With effect from 1st July 2005 the annual fee payable to non-executive directors was increased from £33,000 to
£34,320, with an additional annual fee of £5,000 payable to those who also chair a Board Committee.

Mr A E Kilburn is paid an additional fee of £2,000 in respect of his role as Senior Independent Director.

The Chairman and the non-executive directors are appointed by letter of engagement.  They do not have service contracts
and their appointments can be terminated (by the Board) at any time without notice and without compensation for loss of
office.  Under governance policies approved by the Board, non-executive directors are normally expected to serve a three year
term of office.  A maximum of two such three year terms being the norm, unless the Board approves service of a third three
year term.  A maximum upper age limit of 70 years applies to all directors.

Non-executive Directors Effective date of current Appointment Date of first Appointment

Mr C G Toner 18th October 2002 15th May 2002
Mr P H Ashworth 18th November 2002 1st May 1997
Mr R J Davies* 5th May 2004 5th May 2004
Mr A E Kilburn 18th November 2002 1st April 1998
Mr M Pescod 1st October 2002 1st October 2001
Mr W Shannon 1st September 2005 1st September 2005

*The director’s fee in respect of Mr R J Davies is paid direct to Arriva plc.

Total Shareholder Return Performance Graph 
The following graph prepared in accordance to the Regulations shows the Company Total Shareholder Return performance

over the last five years against the FTSE Construction and Building Materials Sector Index.  The Board has chosen this
comparator index as the Group is a constituent of the index along with its major competitors and it is also the index which is
used to measure performance under the Long-Term Performance Plan.
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Executive Directors Shareholding Guidelines
The following Shareholding Guidelines apply to Executive Directors:

• Within five years of first appointment Executive Directors are expected to hold throughout their period of office ordinary
shares in the Company equivalent to 100% of their basic annual salary, pro-rata holdings are required to be held in this
first five year period; 

• For the purposes of determining the requisite level of each Executive Directors Shareholding relative to basic salary, the
share price shall be that prevailing on 30th June in each year;

• Provided Executive Directors hold the appropriate level of shares they shall be at liberty to sell shares so as to realise their
Long-Term Performance awards or in the exercise of share options subject to the normal Listing Rule requirements for
director shareholdings;

• Executive Directors have until 31st January in each accounting period to increase their shareholding to the appropriate
level.

The following tables and accompanying notes constitute the auditable part of the Remuneration Report as defined in Part 3,
Schedule 7a of the Companies Act 1985.

DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS
2005 2004 2005

Salary/Fee Performance Benefits Total Total Gain on exercise
Related of share options

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

C G Toner 93 – – 93 88 –
D A Pretty 417 547 26 990 918 920
H Walker 300 478 21 799 673 –
P H Ashworth 33 – – 33 31 –
S J Boyes 250 410 20 680 610 515
R J Davies 33 – – 33 5 –
C A Dearlove 235 410 25 670 617 2,461
C Fenton 250 410 25 685 567 39
P R Gieron 250 410 12 672 620 1,477
G K Hester 250 410 19 679 627 396
A E Kilburn 40 – – 40 36 –
M Pescod 38 – – 38 36 –

Total 2,189 3,075 148 5,412 4,828 5,808

In addition to the salary figure detailed in the above table, a supplement of £208,250 (2004 £200,200) for the year
ended 30th June 2005 in respect of the pension arrangements detailed earlier in this report was paid to Mr D A Pretty during
the course of the year.

The fee in respect of Mr R J Davies was paid directly to Arriva plc.

The executive directors receive taxable benefits in kind covering the provision of a motor vehicle, private medical insurance
and some telephone costs.

Remuneration Report
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DIRECTORS’ PENSION BENEFITS

D A Pretty 2,937 48,310 28,406 4,301 592,354 748,036 145,607

H Walker 39,807 226,604 561,453 45,388 2,381,396 3,485,035 1,070,816

S J Boyes 38,449 159,467 257,146 42,088 708,153 1,225,460 487,161

C A Dearlove 27,437 181,413 272,209 31,982 1,404,812 2,065,017 630,459

C Fenton 1,508 19,185 4,746 2,040 110,326 153,218 36,847

P R Gieron 27,896 184,229 236,525 32,597 1,232,429 1,842,399 579,349

G K Hester 1,549 14,215 13,551 1,930 147,492 195,312 41,775

The accrued pension entitlement is the amount that the director would receive if he retired at the end of the year.  The
Listing Rules require this to be disclosed excluding inflation.

The increase in the accrued entitlement is the difference between the accrued benefit at the end of the year and that at
the previous year end.

All transfer values have been calculated on the basis of actuarial advice in accordance with Actuarial Guidance Note
GN11.  The transfer values of the accrued entitlement represent the value of assets that the pension scheme would need to
transfer to another pension provider on transferring the scheme’s liability in respect of the directors’ pension benefits.  They
do not represent sums payable to individual directors and, therefore cannot be added meaningfully to annual remuneration.

Increase in
accrued pension
over the year to

30.06.05
(net of 

inflation)
(£)

Total 
pension
accrued 

at the end 
of the year

(£)

Transfer value of
the increase in

the accrued
pension over the

year (net of
inflation)

(£)

Increase in
accrued 

pension over the
year to 

30.06.05
(£)

Transfer
value of 
accrued 

pension at
30.06.04

(£)

Transfer
value of 
accrued 

pension at 
30.06.05

(£)

Increase 
in transfer

value 
over the

year
(£)



41

Remuneration Report

DIRECTORS’ SHARE OPTIONS

During the year

* Granted under the 1986 Executive Share Option Scheme
The mid-market share price of the Company was 592.0p on 1st July 2004 and 716.5p as at 30th June 2005.  The mid-market high

and low share prices of the Company during the year were 716.5p and 499.5p respectively.  No options of directors in office at 30th
June 2005 lapsed unexercised during the year.

There were no changes in the interests of the directors shown above between 1st July 2005 and 28th September 2005.

On behalf of the Board
A E Kilburn OBE
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 13th October 2005

D A Pretty 140,000
120,000
180,000
180,000

–

–
–
–
–

191,759

140,000
120,000

–
–
–

–
–

180,000
180,000
191,759

273
330
435
545
543

27.10.03
01.11.04
22.10.05
10.10.06
08.10.07

26.10.10
31.10.11
21.10.12
09.10.13
07.10.14

At
30.06.04 Granted Exercised

At
30.06.05

Exercise Price
p

Earliest
Exercise

Latest
Expiry

H Walker 140,000
140,000
120,000
120,000
114,679

–

–
–
–
–
–

138,122

–
–
–
–
–
–

140,000
140,000
120,000
120,000
114,679
138,122

275
273
330
435
545
543

30.09.02
27.10.03
01.11.04
22.10.05
10.10.06
08.10.07

29.09.09
26.10.10
31.10.11
21.10.12
09.10.13
07.10.14

S J Boyes 30,000
120,000
120,000
100,917

–

–
–
–
–

115,101

30,000
120,000

–
–
–

–
–

120,000
100,917
115,101

273
330
435
545
543

27.10.03
01.11.04
22.10.05
10.10.06
08.10.07

26.10.10
31.10.11
21.10.12
09.10.13
07.10.14

C A Dearlove 21,064
120,000
70,000

140,000
140,000
120,000
120,000
103,211

–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

108,195

21,064
120,000
70,000

140,000
140,000
120,000

–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–

120,000
103,211
108,195

271
222
205
275
273
330
435
545
543

26.04.99
11.12.00
15.10.01
30.09.02
27.10.03
01.11.04
22.10.05
10.10.06
08.10.07

25.04.06
10.12.07
14.10.08
29.09.09
26.10.10
31.10.11
21.10.12
09.10.13
07.10.14

C Fenton 12,000
20,000
80,275

–

–
–
–

115,101

12,000
–
–
–

–
20,000
80,275

115,101

330
435
545
543

01.11.04
22.10.05
10.10.06
08.10.07

31.10.11
21.10.12
09.10.13
07.10.14

P R Gieron 140,000
140,000
120,000
120,000
109,633

–

–
–
–
–
–

115,101

140,000
140,000
120,000

–
–
–

–
–
–

120,000
109,633
115,101

275
273
330
435
545
543

30.09.02
27.10.03
01.11.04
22.10.05
10.10.06
08.10.07

29.09.09
26.10.10
31.10.11
21.10.12
09.10.13
07.10.14

G K Hester 120,000
120,000
109,633

–

–
–
–

115,101

120,000
–
–
–

–
120,000
109,633
115,101

330
435
545
543

01.11.04
22.10.05
10.10.06
08.10.07

31.10.11
21.10.12
09.10.13
07.10.14

*
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Note 2005 2004
£m £m

TURNOVER - CONTINUING OPERATIONS 2,484.7 2,343.1
- DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 28.0 172.9)

)
GROUP TURNOVER 2,512.7 2,516.0

OPERATING PROFIT - BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS 395.0 364.2
- EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS, PROFIT ON DISPOSAL 

OF FREEHOLD GROUND RENTS 15.9 –

- CONTINUING OPERATIONS 410.9 364.2
- DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 0.4 11.4

OPERATING PROFIT 1 411.3 375.6

NET INTEREST PAYABLE 4 (4.7) (7.9) 

PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION 2 406.6 367.7

TAXATION 5 (115.9) (107.2)

PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES AFTER TAXATION 6 290.7 260.5

DIVIDENDS 7 (63.9) (51.4)

RETAINED PROFIT 19 226.8 209.1)

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC 9 123.6p 111.4p

EARNINGS PER SHARE - DILUTED 9 122.1p 110.1p

There is no difference between profit on ordinary activities before taxation and the retained profit for the year stated above
and their historical cost equivalents.

Statement of Total Group Recognised Gains and Losses
for the year ended 30th June 2005

2005 2004)
£m £m)

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 290.7)) 260.5)
Currency translation differences on foreign currency net investments – (3.9)

Total gains and losses recognised since last annual report 290.7) 256.6)

Group Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 30th June 2005
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Note 2005 2004
£m £m

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets) 10 11.3) 11.9

CURRENT ASSETS
Properties held for sale 7.2) 9.7)
Stocks 12 2,403.0) 1,977.0)
Debtors due within one year 13 37.7) 41.6)
Debtors due after more than one year 13 2.6) 1.3)
Bank and cash 285.1) 230.4)

2,735.6) 2,260.0)

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors due within one year 14 (1,293.4) (1,066.0)

NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,442.2 1,194.0)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,453.5) 1,205.9)
CREDITORS DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR 15 (101.5) (89.8)

NET ASSETS 1,352.0) 1,116.1)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up equity share capital 18 24.2 24.0)
Share premium 19 197.9) 190.7)
Profit and loss account 19 1,129.9) 901.4)

EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 20 1,352.0) 1,116.1)

Approved by the Board on 13th October 2005

C G Toner
C A Dearlove } Directors

Group Balance Sheet
at 30th June 2005
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Note 2005 2004
£m £m

CASH INFLOW FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 21 168.3) 262.7)

RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF FINANCE
Interest received 2.8) 2.0)
Interest paid (7.5) (13.5)

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS
AND SERVICING OF FINANCE (4.7) (11.5)

TAXATION (113.8) (98.7)

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCIAL INVESTMENT
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (1.9) (3.7)
Sale of tangible fixed assets 2.6 –
Disposal/(purchase) of investments : interest in own shares 1.7 (1.7)

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND 
FINANCIAL INVESTMENT 2.4 (5.4)

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS 22 83.2 –

EQUITY DIVIDENDS PAID (55.6) (45.0)

CASH INFLOW BEFORE FINANCING 79.8) 102.1

FINANCING
Issue of ordinary share capital 7.4) 3.7)
Decrease in debt due after more than one year 23 (9.0) (19.1))

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM FINANCING (1.6)) (15.4))

INCREASE IN CASH IN THE YEAR 23 78.2) 86.7

RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET FUNDS

2005) 2004)
£m) £m)

Increase in cash in the year 78.2) 86.7
Cash flow from decrease in debt 9.0) 19.1

Change in net funds resulting from cash flows 87.2) 105.8
Exchange movements –)) 2.3

Movement in net funds in the year 87.2) 108.1

Net funds at beginning of year 189.7) 81.6

Net funds at end of year 23 276.9) 189.7

Group Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30th June 2005



45

Accounting Policies

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and with applicable Accounting Standards in
the United Kingdom. The principal accounting policies, which have been applied are:

(a) Basis of accounting
The Group prepares its accounts on an historical cost basis.  

(b) Consolidation
The Group accounts include the results of the holding company and all its subsidiary undertakings made up to 30th June.
The financial statements of subsidiary undertakings are consolidated from the date when control passed to the Group using
the acquisition method of accounting and up to the date of disposal.  All transactions with subsidiaries and inter-company
profits or losses are eliminated on consolidation.  Prior to the introduction of Financial Reporting Standard Number 10,
“Goodwill and intangible assets”, goodwill arising on consolidation as a result of the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings
was written off against reserves in the year of acquisition.  This goodwill has not been reinstated in the balance sheet.  Any
goodwill written off against reserves will be charged to the profit and loss account in the event of the disposal of the related
business.

(c) Turnover
Turnover comprises the total proceeds of building and development on legal completion and the value of work executed on
long-term contracts during the year excluding inter-company transactions and value added tax.  The sale proceeds of part
exchange houses are not included in turnover.

(d) Investments
Investments are valued at cost less provision for any impairment in value.

(e) Properties held for sale
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

(f) Stocks
Stocks and work in progress, excluding long term contracting work in progress, are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.
Profit on contracting is taken on short term contracts when completed, and for long term contracts attributable profit is
taken when the final outcome can be foreseen with reasonable certainty; provision is made for any anticipated losses.
Amounts by which turnover in respect of long term contracts exceed payments on account are held in debtors as amounts
recoverable on contracts.  Amounts received in respect of long term contracts, in excess of amounts reflected in turnover,
are held in creditors as payments on account.

(g) Depreciation
Freehold properties are depreciated on a straight line basis over twenty five years.  Plant is depreciated on a straight line
basis over its expected useful life which ranges from one to seven years.

(h) Leased assets
Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account in equal instalments over the life of the lease.

(i) Exchange translations
Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the year end.  Trading results
are translated at the average rate prevailing during the relevant period.  Differences arising on the retranslation of the net
investment and the results for the year are taken directly to reserves together with the differences on foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are used to finance or provide a hedge against Group equity investments in foreign
subsidiary undertakings.  All other foreign exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account in the year in which
they arise.

(j) Deferred taxation
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet
date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the
future have occurred at the balance sheet date.
A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all available
evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal
of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

(k) Pensions
The cost of providing retirement pensions and related benefits is charged to the profit and loss account over the periods
benefiting from the employees' services.  The effects of variations from regular cost arising from actuarial valuations of the
pension scheme are spread over the expected average remaining service lives of the members of the scheme.  The difference
between the charge to the profit and loss account and the contributions paid to the scheme is shown as an asset or liability
in the balance sheet.



46

1. OPERATING PROFIT

2005 2004
Continuing Discontinued Total Continuing Discontinued Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Group turnover 2,484.7 28.0 2,512.7 2,343.1 172.9) 2,516.0)
Cost of sales (2,005.0) (26.9) (2,031.9) (1,909.3) (149.6) (2,058.9)

Gross profit 479.7 1.1 480.8 433.8) 23.3 457.1
Administrative expenses (68.8) (0.7) (69.5) (69.6) (4.4) (74.0)
Impairment provision – – – – (7.5) (7.5)

410.9 0.4 411.3) 364.2) 11.4 375.6

The discontinued operations and prior years’ impairment provision relate to the US housebuilding operation, the disposal of
which completed on 30th August 2004.

2. PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION

2005 2004
£m £m

After charging: 
Depreciation – tangible owned fixed assets 1.7) 1.2)
Operating lease charges – hire of plant, machinery and vehicles 17.8) 16.4)

– other 3.2) 3.1)
Auditors’ remuneration – audit services 0.2) 0.2)

(company: £19,500 – (2004 £19,500))
Auditors’ remuneration for non-audit services in the year amounted to £478,208 (company £364,508), (2004 £198,081
(company:  £193,620)).  The fees for non-audit services comprised £229,000 for the provision of specialist taxation advice
in relation to prior years’ costs of the US subsidiary plus a further £80,000 incurred on its disposal.  £77,000 was paid
during the year on advisory work on the structure of new IT systems.  The balance, £92,000, related to normal taxation
compliance work.  The Audit Committee has an established policy for the provision of non-audit services by the auditors.

The profit on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging the directors’ emoluments disclosed in the
Remuneration Report on page 39.

3. ANALYSIS BY GEOGRAPHICAL AREA

United Kingdom USA Total
2005) 2004) 2005) 2004) 2005) 2004)

£m) £m) £m) £m) £m) £m)

Group turnover by origin 2,484.7 2,343.1) 28.0) 172.9) 2,512.7) 2,516.0)

Operating profit 410.9 364.2) 0.4) 11.4) 411.3) 375.6)

Net assets 1,352.0) 1,065.8) –) 50.3 1,352.0 1,116.1)

There is no material difference between turnover by origin and turnover by destination.  In the opinion of the directors the
activities of the group fall into one class of business, that of housebuilding and development.

4. NET INTEREST PAYABLE

2005 2004
£m £m

Payable: On bank loans, bills and overdrafts 7.5) 9.3)
Less: Receivable (2.8) (1.4)

4.7 7.9

Notes to the Accounts
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5. TAXATION

2005 2004
ANALYSIS OF CHARGE IN YEAR £m £m

Current tax:
UK corporation tax on profits of the period 116.9) 106.2)

Adjustment in respect of previous periods (0.1) (1.8)
Overseas tax 0.3 2.1

117.1) 106.5
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of timing differences (1.2) 0.7

115.9) 107.2)

FACTORS AFFECTING THE TAX CHARGE FOR THE YEAR
The tax assessed for the period is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (30%).
The differences are explained below:

2005 2004
£m £m

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 406.6) 367.7)

Profit on ordinary activities before tax at a rate of 30% (2004 30%) 122.0) 110.3)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (0.6 3.0)
Additional tax relief for land remediation costs (1.9) (1.3)
Benefit of tax losses (1.3) (5.9)
Other timing differences (0.5) (0.8)
Employee share schemes relief (2.2) –
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous periods (0.1) (1.8)
Higher rate of overseas tax 0.5 3.0

Current tax charge for the year 117.1) 106.5)

6. PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES AFTER TAXATION

Of the profit attributable to shareholders, £118.7m (2004 £83.7m) is dealt with in the accounts of the company.  In
accordance with the provisions of Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 a separate profit and loss account for the
company is not presented.

7. DIVIDENDS

2005 2004
£m £m

Interim 8.99p per share paid (2004 6.90p) 21.1) 16.1)
Final 17.99p per share proposed (2004 14.68p) 42.8) 35.3)

63.9) 51.4)

8. EMPLOYEES

2005 2004
£m £m

The average number of persons employed by the Group in building and 
development, excluding sub-contractors, was 4,829 (2004 4,578).
Employee costs (including directors) comprise: Wages and salaries 147.0) 139.8)

Social security 15.4) 13.8)
Pension costs 8.8) 8.6)

171.2) 162.2)

Notes to the Accounts
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8. EMPLOYEES continued

The Group operates throughout the UK a defined benefit final salary pension scheme, the assets of which are held in a separate
trustee administered fund.
The pension cost has been assessed in accordance with the advice of a qualified actuary using the projected unit method in
a review of the Scheme as at 1st December 2001.  The actuarial assumptions are that the investment return will be 1.9% per
annum above annual salary growth.  The market value of the assets of the Scheme on 1st December 2001 was £75.9m.  Their
actuarial value, using the new assumptions, represented 72% of the value of benefits for service to the date of the review
allowing for future salary increases.
In deriving a pension cost, the shortfall in the Scheme is being spread as fixed amounts over the future working lifetime of
the existing members.  For the purpose of funding the Scheme, the shortfall is spread over a shorter period as a level
percentage of members’ salaries.
As a result of the actuarial valuation at 1st December 2001 employer contributions to the Scheme increased with effect from
1st December 2002.  In this regard, with effect from 1st December 2002, the Company’s UK employer contribution was
increased to 15.2% of pensionable salary.  The Group has also agreed to strengthen the Scheme’s funding by additional
contributions of £2.1m per annum for 10 years, from 2003.  The actual additional contribution made in each year will be
reviewed annually in light of the actuarial advice. Furthermore, with effect from 1st December 2003 the employer contribution
was increased to 18.2% of pensionable salary.
The defined benefit final salary section of the pension scheme closed to new members on 1st July 2001 and was replaced by
defined contribution section of the Scheme for new employees.  Under the projected unit method of valuation, the current
service cost will increase as members approach retirement.
The total UK employer contribution in respect of both Schemes for the year ended 30th June 2005 amounted to £10.4m
(2004 £9.2m), while the amount charged to the profit and loss account was £8.8m (2004 £8.6m).  This reduced the balance
sheet accrual of £5.4m at the year ended 30th June 2004 to £3.8m at 30th June 2005.

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per ordinary share is based on the profit after taxation of £290,700,000 (2004 £260,500,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue and ranking for dividend during the year (excluding those held by the
Barratt Developments Employee Benefit Trust) of 235,167,051 (2004 233,904,273).  For diluted earnings per share, the
weighted average number of shares in issue and ranking for dividend is adjusted to assume the conversion of all dilutive
potential shares.  The effect of the dilutive potential shares is 2,962,205 (2004 2,597,644), this gives a diluted weighted
average number of shares of 238,129,256 (2004 236,501,917).

10. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Group) Company
Freehold Plant
property Plant Total Total

£m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1st July 2004 6.0 10.8 16.8 –
Additions 0.2 1.7 1.9 0.6
Disposals (0.7) (0.5) (1.2) –

At 30th June 2005 5.5 12.0 17.5 0.6

Accumulated depreciation
At 1st July 2004 – 4.9) 4.9 –
Charge for the year – 1.7) 1.7 0.2
Disposals – (0.4)) (0.4) –

At 30th June 2005 – 6.2) 6.2 0.2

Net book value at 30th June 2005 5.5) 5.8) 11.3 0.4

Net book value at 30th June 2004 6.0) 5.9) 11.9 –

Notes to the Accounts
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11. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Investment in subsidiary undertakings

The company has shareholdings at a cost of £60.7m (2004 £60.7m).

The principal subsidiary undertakings are:

Barratt Homes Limited
KingsOak Homes Limited
Barratt Construction Limited
Barratt Commercial Limited

A full list of subsidiary undertakings is available on request from the company’s registered office.

12. STOCKS 

Group 2005) 2004)
£m) £m)

Work in progress 2,225.7) 1,874.4)
Showhouse complexes and houses awaiting legal completion 177.3) 102.6)

2,403.0) 1,977.0)

13. DEBTORS

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004

£m £m £m £m

Due within one year
Secured loans – 0.2 – –
Trade debtors 5.4 4.7 – –
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings – – 200.7 246.5
Amounts recoverable on contracts 3.1 4.4 – –
Other debtors 19.3 19.1 – –
Prepayments 3.9 5.6 0.5 0.3
Deferred taxation 6.0 7.6 3.0 2.1

37.7 41.6 204.2 248.9

Due after more than one year
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings – – 61.6 61.6
Secured loans 1.0 0.5 – –
Other debtors 1.6 0.8 – –

2.6 1.3 61.6 61.6

40.3 42.9 265.8 310.5

The analysis of deferred tax is disclosed in note 17.

Notes to the Accounts

All of the subsidiary undertakings’ principal activities are housebuilding and
development.  All are registered in England and Wales except Barratt Construction
Limited which is registered in Scotland.  All of the shares are wholly owned by the
parent.}



50

14. CREDITORS DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004

£m £m £m £m

Bank loans and overdrafts 4.8 28.3 3.3 4.3
Trade creditors (including deferred land payments) 779.7 580.9 1.6 0.4
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings – – –) 81.1)
Payments on account 61.6 32.7 – –
Corporation tax 60.7 58.2 3.4 2.1
Other taxation and social security 8.3 5.1 – –
Other creditors 31.7 35.8 – 1.9
Accruals and deferred income 303.8 289.7 21.6 25.6
Dividend 42.8 35.3 42.8 35.3

1,293.4 1,066.0 72.7 150.7

15. CREDITORS DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004

£m £m £m £m

Bank loans and overdrafts 3.4 12.4) –) –)
Trade creditors (including deferred land payments) 98.1 77.4 –) –)

101.5 89.8 –) –)

Total creditors include £70.1m (2004 £58.3m), secured by legal charges on certain assets of the Group.

16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s financial instruments comprise borrowings, cash and various items such as trade debtors, trade creditors, etc.
that arise directly from its operations, the main purpose of  which is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.  The Board
reviews and agrees policies for treasury management, which have remained unchanged throughout the year.  It is not Group
policy to trade in financial instruments.
The Group finances its operations through a mixture of shareholders’ funds and borrowings.  To ensure flexibility, the majority
of the borrowings are made under pre-arranged revolving credit facilities. 
All short-term debtors and creditors have been, as permitted, excluded from the disclosure requirements of Financial Reporting
Standard Number 13. The secured loans and other debtors of £2.6m (2004 £1.3m) due after more than one year are payable
between two and five years and are non-interest bearing. The bank loans and overdrafts due after more than one year are
repayable between two and five years.
The interest rate profile of the financial liabilities is: £8.2m (2004 £25.9m) sterling, floating rate linked to the UK bank base
rate; £nil (2004 £14.8m) US dollars, floating rate linked to either the US prime rate or Libor, decided by the Group prior to
any drawdown of the facilities; £98.1m (2004 £77.4m) sterling, non-interest bearing, the weighted average period to maturity
being 2.5 years.
Sterling cash deposits of £246.5m (2004 £216.0m) comprise deposits placed on money markets at call at floating rates of
interest.
The undrawn committed borrowing facilities are: £69.4m (2004 £55.9m) expiring in one year or less, £nil (2004 £468.2m)
expiring in more than one year but not more than two years, £400.0m (2004 £4.0m) expiring in more than two years.
There is no material difference between book value and the fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
as at 30th June 2005.

17. DEFERRED TAXATION

Group
2005 2004

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS £m £m

Deferred tax assets comprise:
Accelerated capital allowances 0.2 0.2
Short term timing differences (5.8 4.6
Losses – 2.8

Deferred tax asset 6.0 7.6

Balance at 1st July 2004 7.6 8.3
Transfer on disposal of US subsidiary undertaking (2.8) –
Amount credited/(charged) to profit and loss account 1.2 (0.7)

Balance at 30th June 2004 6.0 7.6

Notes to the Accounts
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18. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL 

2005 2004
£m £m

Authorised 300,000,000 ordinary shares of 10p each 30.0 30.0

Allotted and issued ordinary shares of 10p each
Fully paid – 241,972,144 ordinary shares (2004 239,797,852) 24.2 24.0

The issued share capital of the company was increased during the year to 241,972,144 ordinary shares of 10p each by
the issue of 2,174,292 ordinary shares of 10p each for a cash consideration of £7,388,979 in satisfaction of options
duly exercised in accordance with the rules of the share option scheme and the share option plans.

As at 30th June 2005 the following options issued in accordance with the rules of the executive share option plan and
the employee share option plan were outstanding:

Option Senior Other Not exercisable
Date of grant price Directors executives employees after

a) Executive share option plan

11.12.97 222p – 110,000 – 10.12.07
15.10.98 205p – 129,000 – 14.10.08
30.09.99 275p 140,000 82,000 – 29.09.09
27.10.00 273p 140,000 114,963 – 26.10.10
01.11.01 330p 120,000 188,009 – 31.10.11
22.10.02 435p 800,000 1,044,500 – 21.10.12
10.10.03 545p 798,348 1,286,000 – 09.10.13
08.10.04 543p 898,480 1,613,000 – 07.10.14

b) Employee share option plan

10.04.00 240p – – 30,500 09.04.10
29.03.01 315p – – 69,000 28.03.11
25.04.02 470p – – 265,500 24.04.12
14.05.04 590p – – 1,344,500 13.05.14

In November 1999 the company adopted an employee share option plan. The Board approves the grant of share options
to employees under the plan which are normally exerciseable between 3 and 10 years from the date of grant. The exercise
of the options granted under the plan are subject to the achievement of an objective performance condition set by the
Board, namely that the growth in the basic earnings per share of the company over a period of three consecutive financial
years should exceed the growth in the Retail Price Index by at least 9 per cent.

Those who have participated in the executive share option plan do not participate in the employee share option plan.

The Barratt Developments PLC Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) holds 4,414,640 (2004: 5,372,140) ordinary shares in the
Company.   The cost of the shares, at an average of 358.0 pence per share, was £15,809,386 (2004: £17,524,409).
The market value of the shares held by the EBT at 30 June 2005, at 716.5 pence per share, was £31,630,896 (2004:
£31,668,765).   The shares are held in the EBT for the purpose of satisfying options that have been granted under The
Barratt Developments PLC Executive and Employee Share Option Plans.  These ordinary shares do not rank for dividend
and do not count in the calculation of the weighted average number of shares used to calculate earnings per share until
such time as they are vested to the relevant employee.

19. RESERVES 

Share Profit and
premium loss account Total

£m £m £m

Group
At 1st July 2004 190.7 901.4 1,092.1
Premium on issue of ordinary equity shares under share options 7.2 – 7.2
Profit and loss account – 226.8 226.8
Disposal of own shares – 1.7 1.7

At 30th June 2005 197.9 1,129.9 1,327.8

Company
At 1st July 2004 190.7 223.9 414.6
Premium on issue of ordinary equity shares under share options 7.2 – 7.2
Profit and loss account – 54.8 54.8
Disposal of own shares – 1.7 1.7

At 30th June 2005 197.9 280.4 478.3

Notes to the Accounts
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20. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

2005 2004
£m £m

Opening equity shareholders’ funds 1,116.1 908.9

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 290.7 260.5
Dividends (63.9) (51.4)

226.8 209.1
Exchange adjustments – (3.9)
New share capital subscribed (including premium) 7.4 3.7
Movement in own shares 1.7 (1.7)

Net addition to equity shareholders’ funds 235.9 207.2

Closing equity shareholders’ funds 1,352.0 1,116.1

21. CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

2005 2004
£m £m

Operating profit 411.3 375.6
Depreciation charges 1.7 1.2
(Profit)/loss on sale of fixed assets (1.9) 1.6
Decrease/(increase) in properties held for sale 2.5 (2.0)
Increase in stocks (528.7) (254.4)
Increase in debtors (4.4) (6.8)
Increase in creditors 287.8 147.5

168.3 262.7

22. DISPOSALS 

On 30th August 2004 the group disposed of its small Southern California housebuilding operation at no profit or loss.
Net assets disposed of:

£m
Fixed assets 0.1
Stocks 102.7
Debtors 5.4
Creditors (27.0)

81.2
Inter company balances and disposal costs 3.3

84.5

Satisfied by:
Cash 83.2
Deferred payment 1.3

84.5

The business sold during the year contributed £0.4m to the group’s net operating cash flows and paid £0.4m in
respect of net returns on investments and servicing of finance.

23. ANALYSIS OF NET FUNDS/(DEBT)

Cash Cash Exchange
2005 flow 2004 flow movement 2003

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 285.1 54.7 230.4 110.1 (1.1) 121.4
Overdrafts (4.8) 23.5 (28.3) (23.4) 0.4 (5.3)

280.3 78.2 202.1 86.7 (0.7) 116.1

Debt due after more
than one year (3.4) 9.0 (12.4) 19.1 3.0 (34.5)

Total 276.9 87.2 189.7 105.8 2.3 81.6

Notes to the Accounts
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24. OPERATING LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Group
2005 2004

Land and Land and
buildings Other buildings Other

£m £m £m £m

Annual commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases which expire:
Within one year 0.3 1.6 0.6 1.7
Between two and five years 0.5 3.4 1.0 3.7
In five years or more 1.6 0.8 0.9 –

2.4 5.8 2.5 5.4

25. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The company has guaranteed certain bank borrowings of its subsidiary undertakings, amounting to £8.2m at the year end
(2004 £22.7m).

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A number of partners of the firm of solicitors Field Cunningham & Co, one of whom is Mr P H Ashworth, perform
development related legal work for five of the thirty two operating divisions of the Group.  The firm also performs some
general legal work for divisions and deals with certain specific Group legal matters.  All transactions with the firm have
been on normal commercial terms.  The amount invoiced during the year ended 30th June 2005 was £977,495 (2004
£802,410) of which £136,680  (2004 £20,795) was outstanding at the year end.

In accordance with the provisions of Financial Reporting Standard Number 8, Related Party Disclosures, details of
transactions with subsidiary undertakings are not disclosed.

27. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group accounts for pension costs under SSAP24 (Accounting for Pension Costs), but the disclosures required
under the transitional arrangements for Financial Reporting Standard Number 17, Retirement Benefits, are detailed below.

a) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SCHEME
The Group now operates a defined contribution scheme for employees.  The service cost of this scheme for the period
was £1.2m (2004 £0.9m).  At the balance sheet date there were outstanding contributions of £0.1m (2004 £0.1m)
which were paid on or before the due date.

b) DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME
The Group operates a defined benefit scheme in the UK.  A full actuarial valuation was carried out at 1st December
2001 and updated to 30th June 2005 by a qualified independent actuary.  The defined benefit scheme is closed to
new entrants.  The projected unit method has been used to calculate the current service cost.  This will rise over time
(as a percentage of payroll) as the members of the scheme approach retirement.  At the balance sheet date there were
outstanding contributions of £0.7m (2004 £0.7m) which were paid on or before the due date.
The method and major assumptions used by the actuary were (in nominal terms):

30th June 2005 30th June 2004 30th June 2003
Valuation method Projected unit Projected unit Projected unit
Inflation rate 2.75% 3.00% 2.60%
Salary increase 4.75% 5.00% 4.60%
Rate of increase: for pensions in payment 2.75% 3.00% 2.60%

for deferred pensions 2.75% 3.00% 2.60%
Discount rate 4.95% 5.70% 5.25%

Long term Value at Long term Value at Long term Value at
rate of return at 30th June 2005 rate of return at 30th June 2004 rate of return at 30th June 2003

SCHEME ASSETS 30th June 2005 £m 30th June 2004 £m 30th June 2003 £m

Equities 6.75% 69.5 7.50% 55.2 7.00% 59.0
Bonds 4.55% 45.4 5.70% 36.7 5.25% 9.3
Other 4.00% 0.8 4.00% 0.2 4.50% 5.1

Market value of assets 115.7 92.1 73.4
Present value of liabilities (197.2) (145.9) (139.0)

Deficit (81.5) (53.8) (65.6)
Deferred tax asset 24.4 16.1 19.7

Net pension deficit (57.1) (37.7) (45.9)

Notes to the Accounts
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27. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

2005 2004
Group Group

GROUP NET ASSETS £m £m

Net assets excluding net pension deficit 1,352.0 1,116.1
SSAP24 adjustment 3.8 5.4
Deferred tax (1.1) (1.6)
Net pension deficit (57.1) (37.7)

Net assets including net pension deficit 1,297.6 1,082.2

2005 2004
Group Group

GROUP PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT £m £m

Net profit and loss account excluding net pension deficit 1,129.9 901.4
SSAP24 adjustment 3.8 5.4
Deferred tax (1.1) (1.6)
Net pension deficit (57.1) (37.7)

Profit and loss account including net pension deficit 1,075.5 867.5

AMOUNT CHARGEABLE TO OPERATING PROFIT IN RESPECT OF DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME

Year to Year to
30th June 2005 30th June 2004

£m £m

Current service cost 5.6 5.4
Past service cost – –

5.6 5.4

Year to Year to
30th June 2005 30th June 2004

NET RETURN ON PENSION SCHEME £m £m

Expected return on pension scheme assets 6.4 5.1
Interest on pension liabilities (8.4) (7.4)

Net return (2.0) (2.3)

AMOUNT RECOGNISED IN STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES (STRGL)

Year to Year to
30th June 2005 30th June 2004

£m £m

Actual return less expected return on assets 8.9 5.4
Experience gains and losses on liabilities (7.2) –
Changes in assumptions (31.1) 5.8

Actuarial (loss)/gain recognised in STRGL (29.4) 11.2
Adjustment due to surplus cap – –

Net (loss)/gain recognised (29.4) 11.2

Year to Year to
30th June 2005 30th June 2004

MOVEMENT IN DEFICIT DURING THE YEAR £m £m

Deficit in scheme at beginning of year (53.8) (65.6)
Movement in year:

Current service cost (5.6) (5.4)
Contributions 9.3 8.3
Past service costs – –
Net return on assets (2.0) (2.3)
Actuarial (loss)/gain (29.4) 11.2

Deficit in scheme at end of year (81.5) (53.8)

Notes to the Accounts
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Note 2005 2004
£m £m

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 10 0.4 –
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 11 60.7 60.7

61.1 60.7

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors due within one year 13 204.2 248.9
Debtors due after more than one year 13 61.6 61.6
Bank and cash 248.3 218.1

514.1 528.6

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors due within one year 14 (72.7) (150.7)

NET CURRENT ASSETS 441.4 377.9

NET ASSETS 502.5 438.6

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up equity share capital 18 24.2 24.0
Share premium 19 197.9 190.7
Profit and loss account 19 280.4 223.9

EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 502.5 438.6

Approved by the Board on 13th October 2005

C G Toner  
C A Dearlove  } Directors

Company Balance Sheet
at 30th June 2005

27. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Year to 30th of June
2005 2004 2003 2002

HISTORY OF EXPERIENCE GAINS AND LOSSES £m £m £m £m

Difference between expected and actual return on scheme assets:
amount 8.9 5.4 (10.9) (15.7)
percentage of scheme assets 8% 6% 15% 21%

Experience gains and losses on scheme liabilities:
amount (7.2) – 0.3 0.4
percentage of scheme liabilities 4% – 1% 1%

Total amount recognised in statement of total recognised gains and losses:
amount (29.4) 11.2 (26.5) (29.0)
percentage of scheme liabilities 15% 8% 19% 26%

Notes to the Accounts
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Five Year Record and Financial Calendar
FIVE YEAR RECORD

Year 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Restated Restated Restated

Group turnover £m 2,512.7 2,516.0 2,171.0 1,799.4 1,509.1

Profit before tax £m 406.6 367.7 288.7 220.0 178.4

Share capital and reserves £m 1,352.0 1,116.1 908.9 741.8 619.4

Per ordinary share:

Earnings (basic) pence 123.6 111.4 89.1 68.6 55.1

Dividend pence 26.98 21.58 17.26 14.38 13.07

Net assets pence 559 465 381 312 264

Dividend cover 4.6 5.2 5.2 4.8 4.2

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Announcement of results: Dividends:

Half year 23rd March 2005 Interim paid 20th May 2005

Full year 28th September 2005 Final proposed 18th November 2005

Annual Report posted to shareholders 19th October 2005

Annual General Meeting 17th November 2005
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Barratt Developments PLC
We have audited the financial statements which comprise the group profit and loss account, the group and company
balance sheet, the group cash flow statement, the group statement of total recognised gains and losses, the accounting
policies and the related notes.  We have also audited the disclosures required by Part 3 of Schedule 7A to the
Companies Act 1985 contained in the directors’ remuneration report (“the auditable part”).

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards are set out in the statement of directors’ responsibilities.
The directors are also responsible for preparing the directors’ remuneration report.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements and the auditable part of the directors’ remuneration report in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and United Kingdom Auditing Standards issued by the
Auditing Practices Board.  This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company’s
members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose.  We do not,
in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report
is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.  

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial
statements and the auditable part of the directors’ remuneration report have been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 1985.  We also report to you if, in our opinion, the directors’ report is not consistent with the
financial statements, if the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and
transactions is not disclosed.

We read the other information contained in the annual report and consider the implications for our report if we become
aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements. The other information
comprises only the directors’ report, the unaudited part of the directors’ remuneration report, the Chairman’s Statement
and the Group Chief Executive’s review.

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the company’s compliance with the nine provisions of
the 2003 FRC Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we
report if it does not.  We are not required to consider whether the Board’s statements on internal control cover all risks
and controls, or to form an opinion of the effectiveness of the company’s or group’s corporate governance procedures
or its risk and control procedures.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board.  An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
and the auditable part of the directors’ remuneration report.  It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and
the auditable part of the directors’ remuneration report are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud
or other irregularity or error.  In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion:

• the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and the group at 30th June
2005 and of the profit and cash flows of the group for the year then ended;

• the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and

• those parts of the directors’ remuneration report required by Part 3 of Schedule 7A to the Companies Act 1985
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors 
Newcastle upon Tyne 13th October 2005



Group Structure and Directory

BARRATT HOMES LTD

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

GROUP OFFICE

Barratt Developments PLC, Wingrove House, Ponteland Road, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE5 3DP.
Tel: 0191 286 6811 Fax: 0191 271 2242

Northern Region

Barratt Northern,
Barratt House, 
Airport Industrial Estate, 
Kenton, 
Newcastle upon Tyne, 
NE3 2EQ.
Tel: 0191 286 9866
Fax: 0191 286 8088

Barratt East Scotland,
Craigcrook Castle, 
Craigcrook Road, 
Edinburgh, 
EH4 3PE.
Tel: 0131 336 3655
Fax: 0131 336 2392

Barratt Leeds,
Premier House, 
14 Royds Hall Road, 
Pavilion Business Park,
Leeds, 
LS12 6AJ.
Tel: 0113 279 0099
Fax: 0113 279 0038

Barratt Newcastle,
Barratt House, 
Airport Industrial Estate, 
Kenton, 
Newcastle upon Tyne, 
NE3 2EQ.
Tel: 0191 286 9866
Fax: 0191 271 5985

Barratt West Scotland,
Mayfield House, 
7 Maggie Wood's Loan, 
Falkirk,
FK1 5SJ.
Tel: 01324 620011
Fax: 01324 625916

Barratt York,
Richmond House, 
Millfield Lane, 
Poppleton, 
York, 
YO26 6PH.
Tel: 01904 797961
Fax: 01904 781665

Central Region

Barratt Central,
Worrall House, 
683 Chester Road, 
Manchester, M16 0QS.
Tel: 0161 872 0161
Fax: 0161 877 6070

Barratt Chester,
Oak House, Lloyd Drive, 
Ellesmere Port, 
South Wirral, 
Cheshire, CH65 9HQ.
Tel: 0151 357 4800
Fax: 0151 357 4801

Barratt East Midlands,
Barratt House,
16 Regan Way, Chilwell,
Nottingham, NG9 6RZ.
Tel: 0115 907 8300
Fax: 0115 973 2329

Barratt Manchester,
Worrall House, 
683 Chester Road, 
Manchester, M16 0QS.
Tel: 0161 872 0161
Fax: 0161 848 7332

Barratt Northampton,
900 Pavilion Drive,
Northampton Business Park,  
Northampton, NN4 7RG.
Tel: 01604 664500
Fax: 01604 664501

Barratt Sheffield,
Barratt House, 
Newton Chambers Road,
Thorncliffe Park, 
Chapeltown, 
Sheffield, S35 2PH.
Tel: 0114 257 2500
Fax: 0114 257 2501

Barratt West Midlands,
Trinity Point, 
New Road, Halesowen, 
West Midlands, B63 3HY.
Tel: 0121 585 5303
Fax: 0121 585 5304

West Region

Barratt West,
Barratt House, 
Almondsbury Business Centre, 
Woodlands, Almondsbury, 
Bristol, BS32 4QH.
Tel: 01454 202202
Fax: 01454 617038

Barratt Bristol,
Barratt House, 
Almondsbury Business Centre, 
Woodlands, Almondsbury, 
Bristol, BS32 4QH.
Tel: 01454 202202
Fax: 01454 612277

Barratt Exeter,
Barratt House, 
Hennock Road Central,  
Marsh Barton, 
Exeter, EX2 8LL.
Tel: 01392 439022
Fax: 01392 216104

Barratt Maidenhead,
Westacott Business Centre,
Westacott Way, Maidenhead, 
Berkshire, SL6 3RT.
Tel: 01628 827 350
Fax: 01628 828 494

Barratt Mercia,
4-5 Elm Court, 
Copse Drive, Meriden,  
Coventry, CV5 9RG.
Tel: 01676 525400
Fax: 01676 525401

Barratt South Wales,
Oak House, Penarth Road, 
Cardiff, CF11 8UW.
Tel: 029 2070 4334
Fax: 029 2070 3675

Barratt Southampton, 
Barratt House, Bampton Court,
Hursley Road, Chandlers Ford, 
Southampton, 
SO53 2TA.
Tel: 023 8027 5275
Fax: 023 8026 9922

Southern Region
Barratt Southern,
Wallis House, Great West
Road, Brentford, 
Middlesex, TW8 9BS. 
Tel: 020 8326 7100
Fax: 020 8326 7205

Barratt East Anglia,
Barratt House, 
7 Mill Tye, Great Cornard,
Sudbury, Suffolk, CO10 0JA.
Tel: 01787 468950
Fax: 01787 468969

Barratt East London,
Central House, 
32-66 High Street, 
Stratford, London, E15 2PF.
Tel: 020 8522 5500
Fax: 020 8519 5536

Barratt Eastern Counties,
6-8 Richmond Road, 
Chelmsford, Essex, CM2 6UA.
Tel: 01245 232200
Fax: 01245 232277

Barratt Kent,
Weald House, 88 Main Street,
Sundridge, Kent, TN14 6ER.
Tel: 01959 568400
Fax: 01959 569064

Barratt North London,
Barratt House,
Wellstones, Watford, 
Hertfordshire, WD17 2AF.
Tel: 01923 297300
Fax: 01923 297301

Barratt Southern Counties,
Barratt House, Walnut Tree
Close, Guildford, 
Surrey, GU1 4SW.
Tel: 01483 505533
Fax: 01483 508603

Barratt Thames Gateway,
Central House, 
32-66 High Street, 
Stratford, London, E15 2PF.
Tel: 020 8522 5500
Fax: 020 8519 5536

Barratt West London,
Wallis House, Great West
Road, Brentford, Middlesex, 
TW8 9BS. 
Tel: 020 8326 7100
Fax: 020 8326 7200

Barratt Homes Ltd.,
Wingrove House,
Ponteland Road,
Newcastle upon Tyne,
NE5 3DP.
Tel: 0191 286 6811
Fax: 0191 271 2242

Barratt Construction Ltd.,
Golf Road, 
Ellon, 
Aberdeenshire, 
AB41 9AT.
Tel: 01358 720765
Fax: 01358 724043

KingsOak Homes Ltd.,
Wingrove House,
Ponteland Road,
Newcastle upon Tyne,
NE5 3DP.
Tel: 0191 286 6811
Fax: 0191 271 2242

Barratt Commercial Ltd.,
Wingrove House,
Ponteland Road,
Newcastle upon Tyne,
NE5 3DP.
Tel: 0191 286 6811
Fax: 0191 271 2242
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Central Region
KingsOak Central,
1st Floor, Trinity Point, 
New Road, Halesowen, 
West Midlands, B63 3HY.
Tel: 0121 550 7483
Fax: 0121 585 5535

KingsOak Milton Keynes,
Gazeley House, 
26 Rockingham Drive,
Linford Wood, Milton Keynes,
Bucks, MK14 6PD.
Tel: 01908 541900
Fax: 01908 541901

KingsOak South Midlands,
KingsOak House, 2 Elm Court, 
Copse Drive, Meriden, 
Coventry, CV5 9RG.
Tel: 01676 525900
Fax: 01676 525901

KingsOak South West,
Broadway House, 
Almondsbury Business Centre, 
Woodlands, Almondsbury, 
Bristol, BS32 4QH.
Tel: 01454 275800
Fax: 01454 275831

KingsOak West Midlands,
1st Floor, Trinity Point, 
New Road, Halesowen, 
West Midlands, B63 3HY.
Tel: 0121 585 8788
Fax: 0121 585 8789

Southern Region
KingsOak Southern,
KingsOak House,
Clivemont Road, Maidenhead, 
Berkshire, SL6 7BZ.
Tel: 01628 629922
Fax: 01628 762444

KingsOak North London,
3 The Orient Centre, 
Greycaine Road, 
Watford, WD24 7JT.
Tel: 01923 810870
Fax: 01923 810871

KingsOak Southampton,
1 Eagle Close, Chandlers Ford,
Hampshire, SO53 4NF.
Tel: 02380 461000
Fax: 02380 461007

KingsOak Southern Counties,
Rosemount House, 
Rosemount Avenue, 
West Byfleet, Surrey, KT14 6LB.
Tel: 01932 353882
Fax: 01932 346431

KingsOak Thames Valley,
KingsOak House,
Clivemont Road, Maidenhead, 
Berkshire, SL6 7BZ.
Tel: 01628 629922
Fax: 01628 629500

KINGSOAK HOMES LTD
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